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g?02) 671-2500
6 ttorney for Plaintiff
7
" DISTRICT COURT
5 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
10
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
11
Plaintiff, CASE NO: C-14-295158-1
12
-VS- DEPT NO: XXIII
13 |
14 MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, IR,
#5996049
15 Defendant.
16 “
17 |

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION REGARDING
18 | ST s PREVIOUSLY FILED MOTION IN LIMINE TO PRE NCE
—O'F'V"l'c'TTM' ’S PRIOR SEXUAL ABUS) SETEIKIIT T -

19
20
DATE OF HEARING: OCTOBER 5, 2015
21 TIME OF HEARING: 9:30 AM.
22 COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney,

23 || through JACQUELINE BLUTH, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby files this Notice
24 || of Motion and Motion for Clarification Regarding State’s Previously Filed Motion in Limine

25 || to Preclude Evidence of Victim’s Prior Sexual Abuse at Trial.
26 This motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
27 || attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if

28 || deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.
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NOTICE OF HEARING
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned

will bring the foregoing motion on for setting before the above entitled Court, in Department
XXIII thereof, on Monday, the 5th day of October, 2015, at the hour of 9:30 o'clock, or as

soon thereafter as counsel may be heard.

DATED this 25th day of September, 2015,

STEVEN B, WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY

TACGPELINE BLUTH
Chie¥’Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #10625

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF FACTS
Defendant, MELVYN SPROWSON, is charged by way of Criminal|Information with
the crimes of First Degree Kidnapping (Category A Felony — NRS 200.310, 200.320); Child

Abuse, Neglect, or Endangerment with Substantial Bodily and/or Mental }IIarm (Category B
Felony — NRS 200.508(1)) and Unlawful Use of a Minor in the Production of Pornography
(Category A Felony — NSR 200.700, 200.710(A)(B), 200.750). The crime occurred on or about
July 1, 2013 and November 1, 2013. The victim is a minor female, J.T. (DOB: 06-06-97).

The crimes occurred on or between August 30, 2013 and October 31, 2013.!
To provide clarity to the situation as a whole, the State has included facts from the
present case as well as the victim’s past case.

The Preliminary Hearing Testimony of J.T. Pertinent to this Motion

At the preliminary hearing of this matter, J.T. testified that she was 16 years old and
her birthday is June 6, 1997. In June or July of 2013, J.T. lived with her mom, grandmother
and two sisters. PHT, p. 13. In July of 2013, J.T. began speaking with Defendant over the

Internet. J.T. was 16 when she began speaking with Defendant and she met him on Craigslist.

! 672




(¥ T - - T T o S O R L O

T T VS S Y
O e -1 O th B W R e O

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

PHT, p. 14. Defendant had an ad on Craigslist that said, “Lonely millionaire” and stated a
fake age of 30. J.T. responded to the ad by saying “hi”. Defendant responded back by saying
“hello” and then J.T. told Defendant that she was 16. PHT, pp. 15-16.

For a few days J.T. and Defendant communicated through Craigslist e-mail, where
they exchanged photos. Later, they communicated through Kik, which is a texting application,
because it was easier than e-mailing. J.T. testified that in the beginning she and Defendant

were just friends and then on August 1 [2013], Defendant asked her out and she said yes. PHT,

p. 18. I.T. testified that from August 1st forward, she and Defendant were boyfriend and
girifriend. J.T. further testified that Defendant told her that his real age was 44; and, that after
they became boyfriend and girlfriend she sent Defendant more photographs.l PHT, pp. 17-19.
J.T. testified that she sent Defendant pictures because he asked her to send tlhem and because
she wanted to send them. J.T. further testified that when she sent the pictures she knew what
to do because Defendant told her what to do. PHT, p. 20.

Defendant told J.T. different poses to do and she did them because she wanted to. The
first place J.T. actually saw Defendant was at the Omelet House, where she was working at
the time. J.T. testified that they did not speak, they just looked at each other. J.T. actually
physically met with Defendant at a roller skating rink. J.T. was with her friend Jessica but
Jessica did not know who J.T. was meeting. Jessica thought J.T. was meeting an old teacher
of I.T.’s. PHT, pp. 21-22.

J.T. testified that she did not tell her mom that she was meeting th:c defendant. J.T.

testified that she and Defendant communicated through Kik for 27 days before she actually
went to his home. J.T. never told her told her mom that she was communicating with
Defendant. J.T. told Defendant that she could not tell her mom because 'she would not be
happy at all. PHT, pp. 23-24. J.T. testified that she made sure that Defendan"[ did not call when
her mom was home and they did not video chat when she was anywhere near. Defendant
would only call when she asked him to. J.T. and Defendant came up with a plan if their
relationship was found out which was that she would just keep going back to him. PHT, p. 24

J.T. testified that the first time she went to Defendant’s house she asked him to go there.,
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J.T. told her mom that she was Jessica’s house. J.T. told Jessica that she had to do something
else and Defendant picked her up and drove her to his house. J.T. stayed at Defendant’s house
for two nights. J.T. testified that she asked her mom if she could spend a second night at
Jessica’s because they were having a lot of fun and her mom said yes. PHT, pp. 25-26. J.T.

testified that during the two night period at Defendant’s house, they had sexual intercourse

once or twice. J.T. testified that they did not use a condom because Defendant told her that he
could not have kids. J.T. testified that Defendant gave her a promise ring that looked like a
wedding ring the night she slept over, which she wore around herneck. J.T! testified that her
mom saw the ring and she first told her mom that she had found it and then told her mom that
a boy named Joshua had given it to her. J.T.’s mom did not believe her and found out that J.T.
had not been sleeping over a Jessica’s. J.T.’s mom got J.T.’s phone records and then took
away the ring, J.T.’s phone and J.T.’s computer. PHT, 27-29. ].T. told her mom that she
needed to do a project and e-mailed the Defendant asking him to come and pick her up, because
if he didn’t she wouldn’t be able to be with him. Defendant agreed to come and get J.T. and

told her to bring her birth certificate and social security card, because she would need them to

get a job and other things when she got older. J.T. and Defendant had a plarll for her to stick it
out, in the house, until she was 17 and a half, and then they were going to gét married and she
was going to go to school. PHT, pp. 30-31. |

J.T. took her birth certificate and social security card and Defendanlt picked her up at
3:00 or 4:00 in the morning, while her mom was asleep. J.T. snuck out the front door and told
the Defendant that he could leave her there if he wanted to. Defendant told.J.T. it was ok and
took her to his house, in Henderson, Clark County. PHT, pp. 32-33. |

J.T. testified that Defendant changed his telephone number because she told him that
her mom had his other number. J.T. lived with Defendant for two months, from August 28th

until November Ist. J.T. testified that Defendant was a teacher and while he was at work, she

would watch TV, play video games or read a book. J.T. testified that befiare she lived with
Defendant, she attended school at A-Tech. J.T. did not go to school while living with
Defendant, PHT, pp. 33-34,
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J.T. testified that Defendant felt bad about her not going to school but they had made
an agreement because she would be found if she did go. J.T. testified that it was her and
Defendant’s plan, together, that she would go undetected until she was 17 and a half, when
she would be old enough to get married and go to school. PHT, p. 35. While J.T. was at
Defendant he gave her things to do and books to read to continue her 'education; and, he gave
her board games. J.T. testified that she had rules when she lived with Defendant that included

having no guys in the house and for her not to go outside because she could be found. J.T.

would sometimes ask Defendant to take her out of the house but he would be tired. J.T. and
Defendant sometimes went out of the house at night, but she would dress like a boy with hat
and glasses and baggier clothing. PHT, pp. 35-37. ‘

J.T. testified that she considered Defendant to be a little bit of a jealous person because
he would accuse J.T. of cheating on him. Defendant would tell J.T. that htla knew she was a
cheater; that he should not have trusted her; that his brother was right; and, for her to pack her
bags he was taking her home. J.T. would pack her bags and Defendant would become sad and
cry. PHT, pp. 37-38. Defendant would ask J.T. to stay because he loved her. J.T. testified
that Defendant cried twice; and, that three or four times they just weren’t corlnmunicating right
or something, so she would pack her bags and he would apologize and ask h!:r to stay. During
the eight or nine weeks that J.T. was with Defendant she and Defendant stumbled upon her
family on Twitter, looking for her. PHT, p. 39.

J.T. discovered that her mom was looking for her after a post her aunt made on Twitter

indicating that she was missing and to please repost. J.T. also saw posts on Facebook. J.T.
testified that when Defendant saw those things he told her that her mom wanted control over
her. J.T. further testified that she missed her mom and her family and she told the Defendant
that; but, she felt it was worth it and she would see them in two years. J.T|. testified that she
ask Defendant to drive her by her family’s house at night, which he did. When J.T. asked
Defendant if she could call her family he would tell her that they would call the following
week, but she never called her family. PHT, pp. 41-43.

In the nine weeks that she was with the Defendant, they were intimate once a week.
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J.T. testificd that Defendant did not mistreat her, but he was picky about some things, telling

" her that her letters weren’t right, she couldn’t wash a dish right, and she could not sing. PHT,

pp. 43-44.

Defendant told J.T. that her mom did not care about her and they wrote a story that
Defendant was Prince Charming and J.T. was a princess and Defendant sav!ured J.T. from her
mom. J.T. put the story in a closet at Defendant’s house. J.T. testified that she drank alcohol
on two occasions after Defendant bought it. J.T. During one of those occasions, J.T. got a
little buzzed and had problems walking. J.T. testified that she and Defendant were intimate
on that occasion. PHT, p. 45-47.

J.T. testified that their plan if she got caught living with him was for her to keep coming

back. They planned for her to tell the police that he was looking for a roommate and she found

him on Craigslist. J.T. was not to discuss their relationship and it was supposed to look like
they were just roommates. Once while she was living with Defendant, a péivate investigator
came to the door looking for J.T. She could hear Defendant talking to thlem but could not
hear what he was saying. After he left, Defendant told J.T. that they were fine and they
believed what he told them. PHT, pp. 48-49.

On November 1st, the police came to the door while J.T. was home falone. J.T. spoke
with them but she was not honest with them, with regard to whether they had sex and that they
were just roommate. J.T. testified that she stuck to the plan. J.T. testified that Defendant did

not stick to the plan and J.T. was going to be going home. J.T. taken to West Care for a few
hours before being taken home to her mom’s house. J.T. stayed at her mom:’s house for a few
days and then went to Montevista, a behavioral health center, after trying 'lo leave the house
and go back to Defendant’s. J.T. stayed in Montevista for ten days. PHT, p. 49-52. J.T.
testified that after she returned home to her mom, she felt okay, but later tried to commit
suicide by jumping off their house balcony. J.T. testified that she did that because “it was too
much.” J.T. went back to Montevista for a month and was currently in treatment at a different

facility four months. J.T. testified she has nightmares. PHT, pp. 53-54.
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The Preliminary Hearing Testimony of Kathryn Smith

Pertinent to this Motion
Kathryn Smith is the mother of J.T. Kathryn testified that J.T. is 16|years of age and

her birthday 1s June 6, 1997. During the summer, 2013, around June or July, Kathryn began
to recognize a change in J.T.’s behavior. In July J.T. began staying in her room more. When
Kathryn would walk into the room, she would notice the screen change on the computer which
made her suspect. Kathryn took the computer periodically and checked in but found nothing.
PHT, pp. 172-173. |

Kathryn testified that J.T. came home with a ring that looked like a wedding band. J.T.
told Kathryn that she found the ring on the ground in front of Target. Kathryn thought it was
strange for J.T. to keep the ring because it was out of character for J.T., who would normally
take it to customer service or return it. J.T. gave Kathryn numerous conflicting stories about

the ring that made her uncomfortable and suspicious. Kathryn took the ring from J.T. Kathryn

also noticed that J.T. was making all kinds of telephone calls to a number that Kathryn did not
recognize. Kathryn confronted J.T. about the calls. Kathryn told J.T. she wc'lvuld have to come
up with the truth and they would figure out what the consequences would be. Kathryn took
J.T.’s computer and phone away from her on August 28th. The following day, Kathryn woke
up and J.T. was not there. PHT, pp. 173-175. Kathryn testified that the residence was located
in Henderson, Clark County. PHT, p. 176. |

Kathryn testified that she kept J.T.’s Social Security card in her wallet and J.T.s birth
certificate was in a drawer of Kathryn’s. PHT, p. 176. When Kathryn woke up and J.T. was

not home, she called the phone number that she had seen on the phone records and it was
disconnected. Kathryn testified that it had been on the night before when J.T. was home,
because Kathryn had called the number several times trying to get someone to answer the
phone so that she could have a conversation with them and tell them that they were talking to
a 16 year-old, in case they didn’t know. PHT, p. 177.
/]

!
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Kathryn testified that she had never met Defendant and she had never, given Defendant
permission to take her daughter from her home. Kathryn testified that she had given J.T.
permission to stay a couple nights with her best friend, Jessica, a couple weeks before that.
Kathryn testified that she did not give J.T. permission to be with Defendant during that
weekend. PHT, pp. 178-179.

The day that J.T. went missing, Kathryn contacted the Henderson Pcrlice Department,

who took a report and told her that someone would get back to her. Kathryn did not receive

| much help there and hired a private detective. Kathryn also looked at J.T.’s bank account and

came across the Defendant’s name, which she provided to the police. When Kathryn
researched the name of Defendant she came across message that said, “Welcome Clark County

School District teachers; years 2013-2014.” PHT, pp. 179-180. Kathryn gave the Henderson

Police the Defendant’s name, the name of the school she believed he worked at, as well as an
IP address that J.T. had logged onto from her computer. Kathryn tGStiflle that she used
Facebook, Twitter and Instagram in order to find J.T. and put out word that she was missing,
at which time an organization stepped in to help her find J.T. PHT, pp. 181-182.

Kathryn noticed that some of J.T.’s personal belongings were missing which included

her backpack, three pairs of shoes, almost all of her jeans and clothes, as' well as her birth
certificate and Social Security card. PHT, p. 182. Kathryn testified that Nevada Child Seekers,
Close Kids, The National Center for Missing and Exploited Children and Human Trafficking
were all involved in helping to find J.T. Kathryn continued to ask the Hend!erson Police to go
to Defendant’s house, but they did not go. PHT, p. 183. Kathryn tcstiﬁéd that one of the
counselor’s at her youngest daughter’s school worked closely with an offlicer for the Clark
County School District Police Department. Kathryn gave him the information that she had
and J.T. was found at Defendant’s address within 24 hours. PHT, p. 184.

When J.T. was returned home it did not go well. Kathryn first siept in front of the door

so that J.T. would not be able to leave; and, then took to sleeping with J.T. in the car so as not

to disturb the others in the house. J.T. was threatening to kill herself at Ithis time and told
Kathryn she would rather dic that live with her. Kathryn took J.T. to Mclﬁntevista Hospital,

8
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where she stayed for ten days. PHT, p. 185-186.

When J.T. returned home she attempted to jump off a second story balcony because she
could not use the phone. After the suicide attempt, J.T. went back to Monlevista where she
stayed for a period of time before being placed into a long term treatment for approximately

six months. Kathryn testified that mentally and behaviorally, J.T. remained unstable and

erratic. Kathryn testified that it is much more so than it was before J.T. met Defendant. PHT,
p. 187-190.
After J.T. was found and returned home, Kathryn became aware that J.T. had sent
Defendant nude photos. Kathryn notified the prosecutor of that information. PHT, p. 211.
Statement of the Case Regarding J.T.’s Prior Victimization Pertinent to this Motion
On June 29, 2012, Defendant, DAVID SCHLOMANN, was charged by way of

Criminal Complaint with the crimes of Luring Children or Mentally Ill Persons with the Use
of Technology with the Intent to Engage in Sexual Conduct (Category B Felony — NRS
201,560); Burglary (Category B Felony — NRS 205.060); First Degree Kidnapping (Category
A Felony — NRS 200.310, 200.320); Statutory Sexual Seduction (Category C Felony — NRS
200.364, 200.366); and Sexual Assault with a Minor Under Sixteen (Category A Felony —
NRS 200.364, 200.366). The crimes occurred on or between April 6, 2012 arlld April 15, 2012.

The victim is J.T., then age 14. Defendant was 41 years of age, married, with three children,
when he committed the crimes against J.T. Defendant was living in Albuquerque, New
Mexico, but traveled to Las Vegas to commit the crimes against J.T. SCHLOMANN knew

that the victim was fourteen years of age, yet, on two separate occasions he drove the victim

to his hotel room, without the victim’s mother’s knowledge, and engaged in sexual misconduct
with her. |

On September 25, 2013, Defendant pled guilty to Count 1 — Luring Children or
Mentally Ill Persons with Use of Technology with the Intent to Engage |in Sexual Assault
(Category B Felony) and Count 2 — Attempt Sexual Assault (Category B Felony). The State

retained the right to argue at the rendition of sentence.
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On March 13, 2014, Defendant was sentenced, in addition to $25 .00 Administrative

Assessment Fee, $150.00 DNA Analysis Fee including testifying to determine genetic

markers, $760.00 Psychosexual Evaluation fee, and $2,394.76 in Restitution, to Count 1 — a
MINIMUM of SEVENTY-TWO (72) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of ONE HUNDRED
EIGHTY (180) MONTHS in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC)‘, and in Count 2
—to a MINIMUM of NINETY-SIX (96) MONTHS with a MAXIMUM of TWO HUNDRED
FORTY (240) MONTHS in the NDC, CONSECUTIVE TO COUNT I; SUSFENDED ; placed
on PROBATION for an indeterminate period not to exceed FIVE (5) YEARS. The Court
further imposed all of the conditions as required by NRS 176A.410. The Coqrt further ordered

. a special SENTENCE OF LIFETIME SUPERVISION to commence upon|release from any

term or probation parole or imprisonment; and, Defendant register as a sex offender within
forty-eight hours of sentencing or release from custody.

LEGAL ARGUMENT

Due to the amount of motions in this case coupled with the fact that ]Pefendant now
represents himself, the State is seeking to clarify what will be admissible inthe upcoming
trial on November 2, 2015. Specifically, the State is asking this Court to make a ruling on
whether or not Victim’s prior victimization under C292589 is admissible and whether or not
Victim’s medical records prior to the inception of this case are admissible. Pursuant to the

previous motion in limine filed by the State, it is the State’s position that neither the Victim’s

prior victimization nor her previous medical records are relevant or are admissible at trial.
To see a full argument on that issue please see State’s previously filed Motion in Limine
(attached as “EXHIBIT 1”). In looking at the previous minutes found on Odyssey for
November 5, 2014 (attached as “EXHIBIT 2”), it seems as though the Court agreed with the
State’s Motion. In fact the minutes clearly state:
State’s Motion in Limine to Preclude Evidence of Victim's Prior Sexual Abuse
at Trial: State argued the Rape Shield and noted parties cannot bring in other
case nor get into any sexual conduct. Counsel argued Rape Shield did not

apply in this case and believed State's motion to be prematurq. Court noted

10
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level of conflict with teenagers. State inquired how two traumas were to be
separated and noted incidents have effected how family freats the victim.
State then inquired of how to get around previous mental health treatment and
noted traumas were not intertwined. Arguments by counsel. State suggested
after Court releases medical records, parties could come up with appropriate
Jury Instructions. Court stated the why is not important, believes previous
history is relevant to the defense and defense should be allowed to get into
history. Colloquy regarding prior medical records for in-camera review. Court
agreed, however, it did not want to get into prior evidence and ORDERED,
motion GRANTED IN PART

Based upon the above reading of the minutes it seems as though the Court’s order was

that the Victim’s prior victimization would NOT be admissible at trial. However, the fact that
the Victim has previously been to therapy and had received treatment was admissible, and that
any misunderstandings on the issue could be clarified by a jury instruction. The court even
clarified that the “why” was not important, meaning “why” Victim had received previous
medical/psychiatric treatment was not important, juét that she had received it. The State is
now seeking clarification to make sure that it as well as the Defense conforms with the order.
1/
//
1/
//
//
//
1/
H
//

11
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CONCLUSION

Based upon the above and foregoing Points and Authorities, the State respectfully

requests this Court grant its Motion in Limine to Preclude Evidence of Victim’s Prior Sexual

Abuse at Trial in its entirety and provides clarification on the issue,

DATED this

day of September, 2015,

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565

v O g’

JAC INE BLUTH

Chi uty District Attorney
£ ar #010625

Nevada

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made |this cg.%ay of

September, 2015, by e-mail to:

tgd/MVU

MICHAEL YOHAY, Dep. Public Defender

]%Standby Counsel)

-mail: yohaymr@clarkcountynv.gov

MELVYN SPROWSON, ID #5996049

Clark County Detention Center

330 S. Casino Center Blvd., LVNV 89101

(hand delivery)

% g _

Secretary for the District Attorney's Ottice

Special Victims Unit
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Electronically Filed
09/05/2014 04:10:35 PM

MTN . i-z.%“:""'

STEVEN B. WOLESON

Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT

Nevada Bar #001565
JACQUELINE BLUTH

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010625

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, 3 CASENO: (C-14-295158-1
vs- g DEPTNO:  XXIII
)
MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR., 3
#5996049 ]
Defendant. g
)

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION IN LIMINE TO PRECLUDE
i
EVIDENCE OF VICTIM’S PRIOR SEXUAL ABUSE AT TRIAL

DATE OF HEARING: SEPTEMBER _15 2014
TIME OF HEARING: 9:30 A.M.

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. ‘WOLFSON,|

District Attorney,

through JACQUELINE BLUTH, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby files this Notice

of Motion and Motion in Limine to Preclude Evidence of Victim’s Prior Sexual Abuse at Trial.

This motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court,

i

* EXHIBIT “/"

Tom i

on file herein, the

time of hearing, if
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NOTICE OF HEARING

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned

will bring the foregoing motion on for setting before the above entitled Court, in Department

XXIII thereof, on , the 15 day of September, 2014,
o'clock, or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard.

DATED this 4th day of September, 2011.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/JACQUELINE BLUTH

at the hour of 9:30

JACQUELINE BLUTH

Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #10625

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant, MELVYN SPROWSON, is charged by way of Crimina} Information with
the crimes of First Degree Kidnapping (Category A Felony — NRS 200.310, 200.320); Child

Abuse, Neglect, or Endangerment with Substantial Bodily and/or Mental Il-Iarm (Category B
Felony — NRS 200.508(1)) and Unlawful Use of a Minor in the Production of Pornography
(Category A Felony — NSR 200.700, 200.710(A)(B), 200.750). The crime occurred on or about

July 1, 2013 and November 1, 2013. The victim is a minor female, J.T.

The crimes occurred on or between August 30, 2013 and October 31, 2013,

The Preliminary Hearing Testimony of J.T. Pertinent to this

(DOB: 06-06-97).

Motion

At the preliminary hearing of this matter, J.T. testified that she was 16 years old and
her birthday is June 6, 1997. In June or July of 2013, J.T. lived with her mom, grandmother

and two sisters. PHT, p. 13. In July of 2013, J.T. began speaking with If)cfcndant over the

Internet. J.T. was 16 when she began speaking with Defendant and she melt him on Craigslist.

PHT, p. 14. Defendant had an ad on Craigslist that said, “Lonely millionaire” and stated a

fake age of 30. J.T. responded to the ad by saying *hi1”. Defendant respon'ded back by saying

684




W00 -] O th B W N

gqmm-ﬁ-MMl—D\DWQQMLNMHD

“hello” and then J.T. told Defendant that she was 16. PHT, pp. 15-16.

For a few days J.T. and Defendant communicated through Craigslist e-mail, where

they exchanged photos. Later, they communicated through Kik, which is a texting application,
because it was easier than e-mailing. J.T. testified that in the beginning she and Defendant
were just friends and then on August 1 [2013], Defendant asked her out and sihe said yes. PHT,
p. 18. ILT. testified that from August 1st forward, she and Defendant were boyfriend and
girlfriend. J.T. further testified that Defendant told her that his real age was44; and, that after
they became boyfriend and girlfriend she sent Defendant more photo graphé. PHT, pp. 17-19.
J.T. testified that she sent Defendant pictures because he asked her to send &them and because
she wanted to send them. I.T. further testified that when she sent the pictures she knew what
to do because Defendant told her what to do. PHT, p. 20.

Defendant told JI.T. different poses to do and she did them because she wanted to, The
first place J.T. actually saw Defendant was at the Omelet House, where she was working at

the time. J.T. testified that they did not speak, they just looked at each other. J.T. actually

physically met with Defendant at a roller skating rink. J.T. was with her|friend Jessica but
Jessica did not know who J.T. was meeting. Jessica thought J.T. was meeting an old teacher
of J.T.’s. PHT, pp. 21-22.

J.T. testified that she did not tell her mom that she was meeting the defendant. J.T.
testified that she and Defendant communicated through Kik for 27 days before she actually

went to his home. J.T. never told her told her mom that she was communicating with
Defendant. J.T. told Defendant that she could not tell her mom because she would not be
happy at all. PHT, pp. 23-24. J.T. testified that she made sure that Defendant did not call when
her mom was home and they did not video chat when she was anywhere near. Defendant
would only call when she asked him to. J.T. and Defendant came up with a plan if their
relationship was found out which was that she would just keep going back to him. PHT, p. 24

J.T. testified that the first time she went to Defendant’s house she asked him to go there.
J.T. told her mom that she was Jessica’s house. J.T. told Jessica that she had to do something

else and Defendant picked her up and drove her to his house. J.T. stayed at|Defendant’s house
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for two nights. J.T. testified that she asked her mom if she could spend [a second night at
Jessica’s because they were having a lot of fun and her mom said yes. PHT, pp. 25-26. J.T.
testified that during the two night period at Defendant’s house, they had sexual intercourse
once or twice, J.T. testified that they did not use a condom because Defendant told her that he
could not have kids. J.T. testified that Defendant gave her a promise ringthat looked like a
wedding ring the night she slept over, which she wore around her neck. J.T. testified that her
mom saw the ring and she first told her mom that she had found it and then told her mom that
a boy named Joshua had given it to her. J.T.’s mom did not believe her and found out that J.T.
had not been sleeping over a Jessica’s. J.T.’s mom got J.T.’s phone records and then took
away the ring, J.T.’s phone and J.T.’s computer, PHT, 27-29, J.T. told her mom that she

needed to do a project and e-mailed the Defendant asking him to come and pick her up, because

if he didn’t she wouldn’t be able to be with him. Defendant agreed to come and get J.T. and
told her to bring her birth certificate and social security card, because she vs.lould need them to
get a job and other things when she got older. J.T. and Defendant had a plaln for her to stick it
out, in the house, until she was 17 and a half, and then they were going to ngt married and she
was going to go to school. PHT, pp. 30-31.

J.T. took her birth certificate and social security card and Defendant picked her up at

3:00 or 400 in the morning, while her mom was asleep. J.T. snuck out the front door and told
the Defendant that he could leave her there if he wanted to. Defendant told J.T. it was ok and
took her to his house, in Henderson, Clark County, PHT, pp. 32-33.
J.T. testified that Defendant changed his telephone number becausie she told him that
her mom had his other number. J.T. lived with Defendant for two months, from August 28th
until November 1st. J.T. testified that Defendant was a teacher and while he was at work, she
would watch TV, play video games or read a book. I.T. testified that before she lived with
Defendant, she attended school at A-Tech, J.T. did not go to school|while living with
Defendant. PHT, pp. 33-34.
/
I
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I.T. testified that Defendant felt bad about her not going to school t:olut they had made
an agreement because she would be found if she did go. I.T. testified that it was her and
Defendant’s plan, together, that she would go undetected until she was 17|and a half, when
she would be old enough to get married and go to school. PHT, p. 35. While J.T. was at
Defendant he gave her things to do and books to read to continue her education; and, he gave
her board games. J.T. testified that she had rules when she lived with Defendant that included
having no guys in the house and for her not to go outside because she could be found. J.T.
would sometimes ask Defendant to take her out of the house but he would |be tired. J.T. and
Defendant sometimes went out of the house at night, but she would dress like a boy with hat
and glasses and baggier clothing. PHT, pp. 35-37.

J.T. testified that she considered Defendant to be a little bit of a jeaious person because

he would accuse J.T. of cheating on him. Defendant would tell J.T. that he knew she was a

cheater; that he should not have trusted her; that his brother was right; and, for her to pack her
bags he was taking her home. J.T. would pack her bags and Defendant would become sad and
cry. PHT, pp. 37-38. Defendant would ask J.T. to stay because he loved lher. J.T. testified

that Defendant cried twice; and, that three or four times they just weren’t communicating right

or something, so she would pack her bags and he would apologize and ask her to stay. During
the eight or nine weeks that I.T. was with Defendant she and Defendant stumbled upon her
family on Twitter, looking for her. PHT, p. 39.

J.T. discovered that her mom was looking for her after a post her aunt made on Twitter
indicating that she was missing and to please repost. J.T. also saw posts on Facebook. J.T.
testified that when Defendant saw those things he told her that her mom wanted control over
her. J.T. further testified that she missed her mom and her family and she told the Defendant
that; bilt, she felt it was worth it and she would see them in two years. J.T. testified that she
ask Defendant to drive her by her fanlily;s house at night, which he did. When J.T. asked
Defendant if she could call her family he would tell her that they would|call the following
week, but she never called her family. PHT, pp. 41-43.
I
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In the nine weeks that she was with the Defendant, they were intimate once a week.
I.T. testified that Defendant did not mistreat her, but he was picky about some things, telling
her that her letters weren’t right, she couldn’t wash a dish right, and she could not sing. PHT,

pp. 43-44.

Defendant told J.T, that her mom did not care about her and they wrote a story that

Defendant was Prince Charming and J.T. was a princess and Defendant salved J.T. from her
morn, J. T. put the story in a closet at Defendant’s house. J.T. testified that'she drank alcohol
on two occasions after Defendant bought it. J.T. During one of those océ:asions, J.T. got a
little buzzed and had problems walking. J.T. testified that she and Defenciant were intimate
on that occasion. PHT, p. 45-47,

1.T. testified that their plan if she got caught living with him was for her to keep coming
back. They planned for her to tell the police that he was looking for a roommate and she found
him on Craigslist. J.T, was not to discuss their relationship and it was supposed to look like
they were just roommates. Once while she was living with Defendant, a private investigator
came to the door looking for I.T. She could hear Defendant talking to them but could not
hear what he was saying. After he left, Defendant told J.T. that they were fine and they
believed what he told them. PHT, pp. 48-49.

On November 1st, the police came to the door while J.T. was home alone. I.T. spoke |

with them but she was not honest with them, with regard to whether they had sex and that they

were just roommate. J.T. testified that she stuck to the plan. J.T. testified that Defendant did
not stick to the plan and J.T. was going to be going home. J.T. taken to West Care for a few
hours before being taken home to her mom’s house. J.T. stayed at her mom’s house for a few
days and then went to Montevista, a behavioral health center, after trying to leave the house
and go back to Defendant’s. J.T. stayed in Montevista for ten days. PHT, p. 49-52. J.T.
testified that after she returned home to her mom, she felt okay, but later tried to commit
suicide by jumping off their house balcony. J.T. testified that she did that because “it was too
much.” J.T. went back to Montevista for a month and was currently in treatment at a different

facility four months. J.T. testified she has nightmares. PHT, pp. 53-54.
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The Preliminary Hearing Testimony of Kathryn Smith

Pertinent to this Motion
Kathryn Smith is the mother of J.T. Kathryn testified that J.T. is ltIS years of age and

her birthday is June 6, 1997, During the summer, 2013, around Fune or July, Kathryn began
to recognize a change in J.T.’s behavior, In July J.T. began staying in her room more. When
Kathryn would walk into the room, she would notice the screen change on the computer which
made her suspect. Kathryn took the computer periodically and checked in but found nothing,.
PHT, pp. 172-173.

Kathryn testified that J.T. came home with a ring that looked like a wedding band. J.T.
told Kathryn that she found the ring on the ground in front of Target. Kathryn thought it was
strange for J.T. to keep the ring because it was out of character for J.T., who would normally
take it to customer service or return it. J.T. gave Kathryn numerous conflicting stories about

the ring that made her uncomfortable and suspicious. Kathryn took the ring from J.T. Kathryn

also noticed that J.T. was making all kinds of telephone calls to a number that Kathryn did not
recognize. Kathryn confronted J.T. about the calls. Kathryn told J.T. she would have to come
up with the truth and they would figure out what the consequences would(be. Kathryn took
J.T.’s computer and phone away from her on August 28th. The following (riay, Kathryn woke
up and J.T. was not there. PHT, pp. 173-175. Kathryn testified that the residence was located
in Henderson, Clark County. PHT, p. 176.

Kathryn testified that she kept J.T.’s Social Security card in her wallet and J.T.’s birth
certificate was in a drawer of Kathryn’s. PHT, p. 176. When Kathryn woke up and J.T, was

not home, she called the phone number that she had seen on the phone records and it was
disconnected. Kathryn testified that it had been on the night before when J.T. was home,
because Kathryn had called the number several times trying to get someone to answer the
phone so that she could have a conversation with them and tell them that they were talking to {
a 16 year-old, in case they didn’t know. PHT, p. 177.
/f
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Kathryn testified that she had never met Defendant and she had never given Defendant
permission to take her daughter from her home. Kathryn testified that she had given J.T.
permission to stay a couple nights with her best friend, Jessica, a couple weeks before that.
Kathryn testified that she did not give J.T. permission to be with Defendant during that
weekend. PHT, pp. 178-179,

The day that J.T. went missing, Kathryn contacted the Henderson Police Department,
who took a report and told her that someone would get back to her. Kathryn did not receive
much help there and hired a private detective. Kathryn also looked at J.T.’s|bank account and
came across the Defendant’s name, which she provided to the police. When Kathryn
researched the name of Defendant she came across message that said, “Welcome Clark County
School District teachers; years 2013-2014.” PHT, pp. 179-180. Kathryn gave the Henderson
Police the Defendant’s name, the name of the school she believed he worked at, as well as an

[P address that J.T. had logged onto from her computer. Kathryn testified that she used

Facebook, Twitter and Instagram in order to find J.T. and put out word Ihaft she was missing,
at which time an organization stepped in to help her find J.T. PHT, pp. 181-182.

Kathryn noticed that some of J.T.’s personal belongings were missing which included
her backpack, three pairs of shoes, aimost all of her jeans and clothes, asi well as her birth
certificate and Social Security card. PHT, p. 182. Kathryn testified that Nevada Child Seekers,
Close Kids, The National Center for Missing and Exploited Children and I!Iuman Trafficking
were all involved in helping to find J.T. Kathryn continued to ask the Henderson Police to go
to Defendant’s house, but they did not go. PHT, p. 183. Kathryn testified that onc of the
counselor’s at her youngest daughter’s school worked closely with an officer for the Clark
County School District Police Department. Kathryn gave him the information that she had
and J.T. was found at Defendant’s address within 24 hours. PHT, p. 184.

When J.T. was returned home it did not go well. Kathryn first slept in front of the door
so that J.T. would not be able to leave; and, then took to sleeping with J.T. in the car so as not
to disturb the others in the house. J.T. was threatening to kill herself at|this time and told

Kathryn she would rather die that live with her. Kathryn took J.T. to Montevista Hospital,
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where she stayed for ten days. PHT, p. 185-186.
When J.T. returned home she attempted to jump off a second story balcony because she
could not use the phone. After the suicide attempt, J.T. went back to Montevista where she

stayed for a period of time before being placed into a long term treatment for approximately

six months. Kathryn testified that mentally and behaviorally, J.T. remained unstable and
erratic. Kathryn testified that it is much more so than it was before I.T. met|Defendant. PHT,
p. 187-190. ,
After J.T, was found and returned home, Kathryn became aware i;hat J.T. had sent
Defendant nude photos. Kathryn notified the prosecutor of that infonnatiml. PHT, p. 211.
Statement of the Case Regarding J.T.’s Prior Victimization Pertinent| to this Motion
On June 29, 2012, Defendant, DAVID SCHLOMANN, was charged by way of

Criminal Complaint with the crimes of Luring Children or Mentally Il Per,sons with the Use
of Technology with the Intent to Engage in Sexual Conduct (Category |B Felony — NRS
201.560); Burglary (Category B Felony — NRS 205.060); First Degree Kidpapping (Category
A Felony — NRS 200.310, 200.320); Statutory Sexual Seduction (Categor_\} C Felony — NRS
200.364, 200.366); and Sexual Assault with a Minor Under Sixteen (Category A Felony —
NRS 200.364, 200.366). The crimes occurred on or between April 6, 2012 and April 15, 2012,

The victim is J.T., then age 14. Defendant was 41 years of age, married, with three children,

when he committed the crimes against J.T. Defendant was living in zﬁlxlbuquerque, New
Mexico, but traveled to Las Vegas to commit the crimes against J.T. SCHLOMANN knew
that the victim was fourteen years of age, yet, on two separate occasions he drove the victim
to his hotel room, without the victim’s mother’s knowledge, and engaged in sexual misconduct
with her.

On September 25, 2013, Defendant pled guilty to Count 1 — Luring Children or
Mentally IIl Persons with Use of Technology with the Intent to Engage'in Sexual Assault

(Category B Felony) and Count 2 — Attempt Sexual Assault (Category B IFe,lony). The State
|
retained the right to argue at the rendition of sentence. |

i
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On March 13, 2014, Defendant was sentenced, in addition to $25.00 Administrative
Assessment Fee, $150.00 DNA Analysis Fee including testifying to determine genetic
markers, $760.00 Psychosexual Evaluation fee, and $2,394,76 in Restitution, to Count 1 — a
MINIMUM of SEVENTY-TWO (72) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of ONE HUNDRED
EIGHTY (180) MONTHS in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC!), and in Count 2
— to a MINIMUM of NINETY-SIX (96) MONTHS with a MAXIMUM of ’{'WO HUNDRED
FORTY (240) MONTHS in the NDC, CONSECUTIVE TO COUNT 1; SUSPENDED; placed
on PROBATION for an indeterminate period not to exceed FIVE (5) YE%ARS. The Court
further imposed all of the conditions as required by NRS 176A.410. The Court further ordered
a special SENTENCE OF LIFETIME SUPERVISION to commence upon release from any
term or probation parole or imprisonment; and, Defendant register as a sex offender within
forty-eight hours of sentencing or release from custody.

LEGAL ARGUMENT

L EVIDENCE OF J.T.’S PRIOR VICTIMIZATION IS IRREr‘,LEVANT AND
THEREFORE INADMISSIBLE

The threshold question for the admissibility of evidence is relevance. Brown v. State,

107 Nev. 164, 168, 807 P.2d 1379, 1382 (1991). NRS 48.025(1) provides “all relevant

evidence is admissible.” NRS 48.015 states “‘relevant evidence’ means evidence having any
tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the determination of the
action more or less probable than it would be without the evidence.” Such determinations of
relevancy are within the discretion of the trial court. Brown v. State, 107 Nev. 164, 168, 807
P.2d 1379, 1382 (1991).

In the instant case, evidence regarding J.T. having previously been a victim of crime
and the circumstances surrounding that case is irrelevant and therefore inadmissible. J.T.’s

previous victimization has no bearing with regard to any issue in this case. Certainly, J.T.

having previously been victimized by DAVID SCHLOMANN does nclvthing to prove or
disprove the crimes committed by Defendant in this case. As such, the evidence is inadmissible

and should be excluded as the basis for examination at trial.

10
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II.  NRS 50.090 AND 48.069 PRECLUDE EXAMINATION| REGARDING

J.T’S PRIOR VICTIMIZATION

Nevada, joining a vast majority of jurisdictions, passed statutes limiting the

admissibility at trial of evidence concerning the.sexual history of a complaining witness in a

rape or sexual assault case. To this end, NRS 50.090 prohibits the accused|from impeaching

a rape victim’s credibility with evidence of her prior sexual conduct, unless the victim has

testified regarding her sexual history or the prosecution has presented evidence regarding the

victim’s prior sexual conduct. In addition, NRS 48.069 provides:

In any prosecution for sexual assault or for attempt to commit or
conspiracy to commit a sexual assault, if the accused desires to
present evidence of any previous sexual conduct of the victim of
the crime to prove the victim's consent: |

1. The accused must first submit to the court a written offer of
roof, accompanied by a sworn statement of the specific facts|that
e expects to prove and pointing out the relevance of the facts to

the issue of the victim's consent.

2. If the court finds that the offer of proof is sufficient, the court
shall order a hearing out of the presence of the jury, if any, and at
tl}c hcarfing allow the questioning of the victim regarding the offer
of proof.

3. At the conclusion of the hearing, if the court determines that the
offered evidence:

(a) Is relevant to the issue of consent; and

(b) Is not required to be excluded under NRS 48.035, the court
shall make an order stating what evidence may be introduced by
the accused and the nature of the questions which he is permitted
to ask. The accused may then present evidence or question the
victim pursuant to the order.

In Summit v, State, 101 Nev. 159, 697 P.2d 1374 (1985), the Nevada Supreme Court

explained that the general policy behind rape victim shield laws is to (1) reverse the common

law rule that use of evidence of a female complainant’s general reputatio

chastity is admissible to infer consent and to attack credibility, (2) protect

n for morality and

rape victims from

degrading and embarrassing disclosure of intimate details about their private lives, and (3)

encourage rape victims to come forward and report crimes and testify in court protected from

unnecessary indignitics and needless probing into their respective sexual histories. See also,

11
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Drake v. State, 108 Nev. 523, 836 P.2d 52 (1992); Brown v. State, 107 Nev. 164, 807 P.2d

1370 (1991); Lane v. Second Judicial Dist. Court, 104 Nev. 427, 760 P.2d 1245 (1988).

In the instant case, any examination by the defense regarding J.T'S prior victimization
constitutes a thinly veiled attempt to introduce evidence of the victim’s prior sexual history,

which has absolutely no relevance to this Defendant or this case. Rather, any questions

concerning the prior victimization of J.T. and the circumstances surrounding it, would simply
be an attempt to assault her character in front of the jury, in contradictioxl to the letter and
policy of Nevada’s rape shield statute. This is precisely the type of improper motive for
examination that NRS 59.090 and 48.069 seck to preclude.
IHI. EVIDENCE OF J.T.’S PRIOR VICTIMIZATON IS NO’I;‘ ADMISSIBLE
PURSUANT TO NRS 48.035
NRS 48.035 states in relevant part:

1. Although relevant, evidence is not admissible if its probative
value is substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair
prejudice, of confusion of the issues or of misleading the jury.

2. Although relevant, evidence may be excluded if its probative
value is sobstantially outweighed by considerations of undue

delay, waste of time or needless presentation of cumulative
evidence.

From the foregoing it is clear that evidence of J.T.’S prior victimization and prior sexual
history in that respect have no probative value in this case. Beyond that, the danger of unfair
prejudice from such evidence is great. In addition, such evidence would add nothing to the
Defendant’s case and would unjustifiably delay the proceedings; and, mislead the jury as to
the real issue in the case, which is whether this Defendant kidnapped J.T., used her to produce
pornography, and, committed the crime of child abuse, neglect, or endangerment with
substantial bodily and/or mental harm, by keeping her isolated from her family, engaging in

sexual intercourse with her, keeping her from going to school; and, engaging in demeaning

and controlling behaviors toward her.
i
/f
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IV. ADMISSION OF J.T’S PRIOR VICTIMIZATION WOULD CONSTITUTE
IMPROPER CHARACTER EVIDENCE
NRS 50.085 states:

1. Opinion evidence as to the character of a witness is admissible
to attack or support his credibility but subject to these limitatltl)ns:

(a) Opinions are limited to truthfulness or untruthfulness; and,

(b) Opinions of truthful character are admissible only after|the
introduction of opinion evidence of untruthfulness or other
evidence impugning his character for truthfulness.

w00 -1 vt PR~ W N

2. Evidence of the reputation of a witness for truthfulness or
untruthfulness is inadmissible.

(S
o

3. Specific instances of the conduct of a witness, for the purpose
of attacking or su%porting his credibility, other than conviction of
11 crime, may not be proved by extrinsic evidence. They may,
however, if relevant to truthfulness, be inquired into on cross-
12 examination of the witness himself or on cross-examination of a
witness who testifies to an opinion of his character for truthfulness
13 or untruthfulness, subject to the general limitations upon relevant
evidence and the limitations upon interrogation and subject to the

14 provisions of NRS 50.090.
15 In Lobato v. State, 120 Nev. 512, 96 P.3d 765 (2004), the Nevada Supreme Court

16 [ addressed the issue of the admissibility of extrinsic evidence and determined, in that case, the
17 || evidence was admissible because it was relevant to a mode of impeachment that does not
18 | implicate the collateral-fact rule-motivation to give false testimony.
19 In distinguishing the district court’s error in not permitting Lobato to introduce extrinsic

20 || evidence to impeach the witness on the issue of her motive to testify, the Court noted:

21 FN 16. The present matter is distinct from prior cases in which
we ruled that extrinsic evidence was inadmissible jand
22 therefore collateral. Those cases dealt with evidence of a
witness's prior bad acts, not inquiry into a witness's bias or
23 interest, and we ruled that the use of extrinsic evidence in such
situations was impermissible. See, e.g., Collman v, Statg,! 116
24 Nev. 687, 7 P.3d 426 (2000) (district court properly precluded
questioning a state witness regarding an abortion; such evidence
25 was immaterial to the question of whether the defendant
committed homicide and therefore inadmissible); McKee v. State,
20 112 Nev. 642, 917 P.2d 940 (1996) (error for prosecutor to
impeach defendant with extrinsic evidence regarding drug use on
27 a specific day; such evidence was irrelevant to whether defendant
trafficked drugs on another day and was therefore inadmissible
23 collateral evidence); Rowbottom v. State, 105 Nev. 472, 779|P.2d
13
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934 (1989) (error to admit extrinsic evidence of prior bad act to
impeach defendant’s credibility; prosecutor could only impeach by
questioning defendant about the act during defendant's own
testimony, not by introducing extrinsic evidence); Rembert v.
State, 104 Nev. 6%0, 766 P.2d 890 (1988) (error to allow State to
introduce immaterial extrinsic evidence of defendant's termination
from employment; the issue at trial was whether defendant hadthe
opportunity to commit sexual assault; therefore, the extrinsic
evidence was collatéral).

Pursuant to NRS 50.085, evidence of a witness’ character is admissible only if it goes
to truthfulness or untruthfulness. Moreover, extrinsic evidence, other than a prior criminal
conviction, may not be used for the purpose of attacking the credibility of awitness.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the above and foregoing Points and Authorities, the State respectfully

requests this Court grant its Motion in Limine to Preclude Evidence of Victim’s Prior Sexual
Abuse at Trial.
DATED this 4th day of September, 2014,

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLESON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/JACQUELINE BLUTH

T
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010625
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CERTIFICATE OF E-MAIL
1, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 4th day of

September, 2014, by e-mail to:

JOHN J. MOMOT, ESQ.
e-mail: momotlawfirm @gmail.com

/st HOWARD CONRAD
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
Special Victims Unit '

hjc/SVU

15

697




C-14-293158-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor ~ COURT MINUTES ___November 05, 2014

C-14-295158-1 State of Nevada
£
Melvyn Sprowson, Jr.

November 05,2014  9:30 AM All Pending Motions Defendant’s Notice of
Motion and Mlotion
for Independent
Psychologlcal/Psych
atric Exam:matmn of
the Cumplammg
Witness; STate S
Motion in Lm!lme to
Preclude Evidence of
Victim's Prior; Sexual
Abuse at Tria;; Deft's
Motion for Discovery

HEARD BY: Miley, Stefany COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 12C

COURT CLERK: Katherine Streuber

RECORDER: Maria Garibay

REPORTER:

PARTIES

PRESENT: Bluth, Jacqueline District Attorney

Sprowson, Melvyn Perry, Jr. Defendant

Sweetin, James R District Attorney

Zheng, Yi Lin Attorney for Defendant
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Deft's Motion for Independent Psychological Psychiatric Examination of the Complaining Witness:
Court pointed out State had not hired psychiatrist to testified. Counsel argued Abbott v. State case

PRINT DATE: 11/07/2014 = = Page 1 of 2 Mlnutes Date: November 05,

N EXHIBI T 2
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(C-14-295158-1

and further argued substantial bodily harm. State advised they had chosen to use testlmony of
mother and child at Preliminary Hearing and noted they would bring in doctor who had seen child
which is different from bringing in an expert. Court inquired whether the State would be turning
over treatment records to the defense. State advised they could not turn them over. Counsel stated
Koerschner had been satisfied and believed victim is being coached, therefore they should be allowed
to have an independent examination. Court pointed out defense had requested an mterwew with the
victim. Counsel agreed they had, however, victim's mother said no at the time. State argued
Koerschner, noted kidnapping evidence being overwhelming, believed defense had ndt met their
prongs and pointed out Court could not order victim to speak with anyone which would go against
the mother's wishes. Counsel requested contact information and noted victim is 17 years of age and
is getting ready to turn 18 to which victim could make her own decision. Court FINDS more than
enough evidence outside testimony and ORDERED, motion DENIED. FURTHER, State to provide
contact information; Colloquy regarding victim taking mood altering medications. State s Motion in
Limine to Preclude Bvidence of Victim's Prior Sexual Abuse at Trial: State argued the | Rape Shield
and noted parties cannot bring in other case nor get into any sexual conduct. Counsellargued Rape
Shield did not apply in this case and believed State's motion to be premature. Court noted level of
conflict with teenagers. State inquired how two traumas were to be separated and noted incidents
have effected how family treats the victim. State then inquired of how to get around plrevmus mental
health treatment and noted traumas were not intertwined. Arguments by counsel. State suggested
after Court releases medical records, parties could come up with appropriate Jury Instmctlons Court
stated the why is not important, believes previous history is relevant to the defense and defense
should be allowed to get into history. Colloquy regarding prior medical records for i m—camera
review. Court agreed, however, it did not want to get into prior evidence and ORDERED motion
GRANTED IN PART; Deft's Motion for Discovery: Counsel advised they had received audios of
interviews, noted transcripts of said recordings had not been received and requested 1 motion be taken
off calendar. COURT ORDERED, motion OFF CALENDAR. Colloquy regarding trial setting.

Parties advised they would contact Court's Judicial Executive Assistant to discuss trial stacks and

schedules.
BOND
PRINT DATE: 11/07/2014 Page 2 of 2 Minutes Date: November 05,
2014
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SYEFANY A. MILEY
DISTRICT JUDGE

DEPARTMENT TWENTY THREE
LAS VEGAS NV 89101-2408

Electronically Filed
10/02/2015 11:21:31 AM

NOCH | [0,/ ;LM

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA
STATE OF NEVADA
Plaintiff,
CASENO. (C295158
DEPTNO: XXIII
MELVIN SPROWSON, JR.,
Defendant

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF HEARING

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the above matter has been reset nnl Department 23°s
calendar from October 5, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. to October 12, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. for a Status
Check hearing Re: Discussion Regarding Victim’s Prior Case Before Judge Silver, and State’s
Notice of Motion and Motion for Clarification Regarding State’s Previously Filed Motion In
Limine to Preclude Evidence of Victim’s Prior Sexual Abuse at Trial.

DATED: October 2, 2015.

Carmen Alper
Judicial Executive Assistant

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the date filed, I caused to be placed a copy of the foregoing Notice of Change of Hearing
in the folder(s) in the Clerk’s Office or mailed to the following;

Jacqueline Bluth, Esq., Melvyn Perry Sprowson, Ir., Defendant in r Person, id# 5996049, CCDC, 330 8.
Casino Center Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89101, and to Michael R. Yohay, Esq., StandbyCoungel.

By: / _—
CormenAper ~
Judicial Executive Assistant
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To: Eighth Judicial District Court Page 1 of 2 2015-09-23 20:42:48 (GMT) (646) 607-7053 From: MY Tupelo Entertairfjmentg

Electronically Filed

e 10/07/2015 09:57:47:AM ;
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| EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT % b s
CIETRICT GUURT ADMIE e (.,me E‘E}QNT’&Q NEVADA - - {/{3 SR
o - ' CLERK OF THE COURT

State of Nevada [+ 29 U

CASE NO: 00 S VOB | ‘

PLAINEIFE

DEPT. NO:_3, | N
Y B | TR
MEDIA REQUEST AND ORDER ALLOWING

e M N TR g e e, CAMERA ACCESS TOCOURT PROCEEDINGS.

N A £ Plense fax 40 (TO2) ATI-4548 10 goswre that
DEFENDANT e roguest will be processad gs quickly as-possible

e o AT ot S e e o e

‘ S B
L T frme), of e S e o s iotmand S e e (media organizatiin,
herchy reguests pernvission 4o broadeast, record, photograph g televise preceedings in the above-entitled casein : E
.y § e e .
t:scm Neo. 'f',l;l_.m « o e Flosorabie Judge ™0 Z"Z‘W-&_,%‘Sawgmmmw S, Prggiding, ah i.he-M,fgf__;w_m_xm}" of
Ryt et g Ny L 2 "wﬁ" . ‘ t‘?".‘. 4

I hereby certify tha | win familiar wiih, and will comply. with' Supeere Court Redes. 229-246, inclgsive AFthis request is being
wbmﬂtué less thaz fwint-four( 243 hours befbre the-above-described groceedings commenee, tefollowing facis provide good
cose-For-the Cowrs ko gram he request onsuch short nodive:

s A s a2 - i

Tvds farther uadersiopd that any-medis camera pooling amangements shall be the sole responsibifiey of The nodia aivd mogt be
srranped priorta eopverage, withoutasking for the Courtiomadiale dispites.

Rt e O

ated thiz Tho=a dayol 25 'g;:‘—'-;f e 20T

et gme s el g oo - M et P e e
SRR I S W g TS T T e T s e TR e et

T o + e " e, -

PHONE: {ripon™ THNG - % 5D
i

Gt e e TR SR e RO SR e e s o ek R R Ak S e B A R e Btk i R g o R A R e e et R R S b

IT IS HERERY ORDERED THAT: P

[ ] The medis request-is denied bevause i was submitted ess than 24, hours beforethy scheduled praceeding was o
soranente, and nu “good ¢avse’ bas been shown to-justify-praming the request on shorternotice. =
[] The mediayequest i denied for the-following weasons:_ . . .

e , - o

Thie iedia request s granied, Thz requésiod media aegess remmains. i gilegt forgach and every: fenring in the above-
entiled case, al thﬁdﬂuﬂﬁmn o the Coor. aad untess otharwise not{fed. Tl orderismade-in accordunce with
Suprene Court Redes 229-246, inglusive, al the. discretion ofthe judee, sad is sibject to reconsideration’ UPON MY
ofany pasty 1o the seiion, Media acsess may e yevoked 16T shows that accesy is disfeacting he parficipants,

mpaicing the dignity of the Cour(; or ofierwise masesiadlly inesfering with the adminisiration of justice 5
[} QTHER -
IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED tha this docament shall be madea part of the-record of the proceedings in this-pase, - "

Dated this _ Q,,_ **** _ day of O( ;g N ;'2{3,‘

¥y C&A_,f : i

ISTRICT COURT JUBGE

JUDGEQEFANYA ILEY
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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
)
State of Nevada ;
) caspno; C-14-295158-1
PLAINTIFF )
| DEPT.No: 29
VS- )
)
Melvyn Sprowson ) NOTIFICATION OF
) MEDIA REQUEST
DEFENDANT )
)

TO: COUNSEL OF RECORD IN THE ABOVE-CAPTIONED CASLE:

You are hereby notified pursuant to Supreme Court Rules 229-246, inclusive, that media representatives

from My Entertainment have requested to obtain permission to broadcast, televise, record or

take photographs of all hearings in this case. Any objection should be filed at least 24 hours prior to the subject

hearing,.

24

DATED this day of September

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION

24 . September 15

I hereby certify that on the , service of the foregoing

was made by facsimile transmission only, pursuant to Nevada Supreme Court Rules 229-246, inclusive, this date by

faxing a true and correct copy of the same to each Attorney of Record addressed as follows:

Plaintiff Defendant
District Attorney Pro Se
(702) 455-2294 Unknown

icial Dis¥rict Court
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Electronically Filed
10/08/2015 03:41:00 PM

STEVEN B, WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565

JACQUELINE BLUTH

Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #010625

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

~V5- CASENO: C-14-295158-1

MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR., :
15006040 DEPT NO: XXIII

Defendant.

NOTICE OF WITNESSES AND/OR EXPERT WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234]
TO: MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR., Defendant; and

TO: MICHAEL YOHAY, Deputy Public Defender, as Standby Counsel:
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF

NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses and/or expert witnesses in its case in chief:

ABBOTT, GARY CCSDPD#0199
CALDWELL, MATT CCSDPD#0368
COR, or Designee CCSD Records
COR, or Designee CCSDPD Records
COR, or Designee Cingular Wireless
COR, or Designee Facebook/Instagram

1601 Willow Road, Menlo Park, CA 94025

W:A2013RI 78 IA3F17841-NWEW-(SPROWSON_MELVYN}-001.DOCX
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COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COX, TROY

FISCHER, MICHELLE
GATES, (Volunteer) #1503
HARRIS, KATHY

LEAVA, CHANTEL, or Designee

LINDSEY, GILBERT
LOGIUDICE, Detective
LOMBARDO, NANCY
MACISZAK, MITCHELL
MALONE, Officer

PATEL, BOB

PATEL, USHA

PLATT, DAVID
SAVASPANO, DENISE
SCHELL, JEFFREY
SMITH, CHERYL
SMITH, KATHRYN
SWARTWOOD, AMBER

Fidelity Communications
HPD Records

Los Angeles Police Dept.
150 N. Los Angeles, Los Angeles, CA 90012

Los An]%eles Police Dept. Records
150 N. Los Angeles, Los Angeles, CA 90012

MSN/Hotmail

Red Rock Jewelers, 1325 W. Warm Springs,
Henderson, NV89014

Sprint

Wells Fargo

CCSDPD #UNK (Forensics)
CAC

Henderson PD

c/o Clark County DA’s Office
Fidelity Communications

c/o Clark County DA’s Office
HPD #983

Lawton Police Department, Oklahoma
CCSDPD #0308

HPD #1456

Deluxe Inn
1709 NW Cache Rd., Lawton, OK 73507

Deluxe Inn
1709 NW Cache Rd., Lawton, OK 73507

CCSDPD #0217

CFSI, 8815 Barton St., Riverside, CA 92508
CCSDPD #0295

¢/o Clark County DA’s Office

c/o Clark County DA’s Office

HPD #1148

2

WA2013R 178\ 1\3F 17841 - NWEW-(SPROWSON_MELVYN)-001.DOCX
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TORRES, JAYSENIA c/o Clark County DA’s Office

STRANGE, DR. MAYA - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 — Will
testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.
Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and
diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

SILSBY, MS, PA-C - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 — Will testify
as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will
testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the
Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

CRUMP, DANIEL, LCSW - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 —
Will testify as to his/her practice and practicc methods within his/her field of expertise.
Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and
diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

DONALDSON, ROBYN, Psychologist — 2410 W. Horizon Ridge, #100, Henderson,
NV, 89052 - Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of

expertise. Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy,

treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for

continued care.

ROSENMAN, DR. EUGENE — 2775 S. Jones Blvd., #101, Las Vegas, NV 89146 -
Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.
Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counsling/therapy, treatment, and
diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

CHELLI, FRANCES, CSW Intern, H.O.P.E. Counseling - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

REID, NOEL, CSW Intern, H.O.P.E. Counseling — (702) - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the

3
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examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

NWAPA, DR. EMMANUEL, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to his/her practice
and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

BRENNAN GARCIA, LYNDSEY, LCSW, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to
his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will
testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the
Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

RODRIGUEZ, DR. BRYN, LCSW, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care,

DAVIS, VENA, LCSW, Mojave Adult/Family Services - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Totres, including any plans for continued care.

These witnesses are in addition to those witnesses endorsed on the Information or
Indictment and any other witness for which a separate Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert
Witnesses has been filed.

//
//
//
1/
1
1
1/

4
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The substance of each expert witness’ testimony and copy of all reports made by or at
the direction of the expert witness has been provided in discovery.

A copy of each expert witness’ curriculum vitae, if available, is attached hereto.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

Chi eBputy District Attorney
ar #

Nevada 010625

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this day of
October, 2015, by e-mail to:

MICHAEL YOHAY, Dep. Public Defender
(Standby Counsel)
E-mail: yohaymr@clarkcountynv.gov

MELVYN SPROWSON, ID #5996049
Clark County Detention Center

330 S. Casino Center Blvd., LVNV 89101
(hand delivery)

Secretary for the DistrictAttorney's Office
Special Victims Unit

tgd/MVU

5
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Contact Information

Vena M. Davis

6375 West Charleston Blvd., A-100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89146
702-253-0818 (Primary)

vmdavis@medicine.nevada.edu

Employment History

July 2011- Present

April 2010- September 2011

July 2011-September 2008

September 2008-May 2007

Licensed Clinical Social Worker Mojave Mental Health

Responsibilities: Provide direct clinical needs to individuals,
groups, and families who identify a need in receiving mental
health assistance, which includes one-on-one therapy, targeted
case management and linking/referring to Medicaid agencies in
Nevada.

Clinical Reviewer Magellan Medicaid

Responsibilities: Review of service requests against established
and approved clinical criteria for medical necessity. Complete
suitability assessments, functional assessments, evaluations, and
attend mandatory meetings related to Medicaid policies and
procedures.

Clinical Social Work Intern Mojave Mental Health

Responsibilities: Provide direct clinical needs to individuals,
groups, and families who identify a need in receiving mental
health assistance, which includes one-on-one therapy, targeted
case management and linking/referring to Medicaid agencies in
Nevada with supervision from a licensed clinical social worker,

Social Worker I Clark County Social Service

Responsibilities: Identifies social, economic, and physical
needs of clients; assess client support systems, available
community resources and other factors to plan, develop, and
implement an appropriate service plan. Refer clients to

708



April 2007-June 2005

May 2005 —October 2004

October 2004-April 2004

April 2004 -August 2003

August 2003 -January 2002

August 2001 -March 2001

May 2000 -March 1999

appropriate community medical, emotional, economic, and
social support organizations; advocate for or assist client in
obtaining such services.

Social Worker |l Division for Aging Services

Responsibilities: Responsible for proper and efficient
service delivery to the population served. Provide intensive case
management as well as resources to disenfranchised individuals
on caseload. Generate various protection reports in the event of
neglect, abuse, or exploitation to the proper authorities.
Responsible for proper documentation of events that take place,
as well as maintaining and reporting an accurate account of time
spent on managing caseload to fiscal analysts.

Safari Guide (Waitress) Rainforest Café

Responsibilities: Take customers orders and execute their
requests promptty and accurately. Ensure customer satisfaction
throughout their visit at the restaurant.

Jungle Runner (Food Runner)}Rainforest Café

Responsibilities: Responsible for making sure that the
customers’ food is received and presented in a timely manner,

Tour Guide (Hostess) Rainforest Café

Responsibilities: Responsible for taking reservations,
customer service and directing the flow of restaurant traffic
and instructing hosts to tables.

Customer Service Representative  Ultimate Electronics

Responsibilities: Handling cash, balancing bankbooks, and
customer service. Generate service work orders and order
necessary business materials for the staff.

Barista Jitters Coffee

Responsibilities: Cash handling, made sure that areas were well
stocked and kept clean.

Crewmember Wendy’s

709



Responsibilities: Cash handling, took orders and ensured that
order was correct. Also handled food preparation used for the
next business day.

Education History
2005-2008  Major: Master of Social Work (Accredited by C.5.W.E.)

Degree: Master of Social Work

Educational Institution: University of Nevada Las Vegas, Las Vegas, Nevada

2005-2002 Major: Bachelor of Social Work (Accredited by C.5.W.E.)
Degree: Bachelor of Social Work

Educational Institution: University of Nevada Las Vegas, Las Vegas, Nevada

Honors: National Dean’s List

2002-2001 Major: Biology
Degree: No Degree Obtained
Educational Institution: Grambling State University, Grambling, Louisiana

Honors: Honor Roll

2001-1999 Major: Psychology
Degree: Associate of Arts: General Studies

Educational Institution: Community College of Southern Nevada, Las Vegas,
Nevada

2001-1997  Major: General Education Curriculum

Certification: Diploma ,

Educational Institution: Community College High School of Southern Nevada

Educational Experiences
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August 2007-April 2008

January 2005- April 2005

Social Work Practicum Student Mojave Mental Health

Oriented to therapeutic processes/approaches that provides
optimal effective outcomes with children and adults while in a
clinical setting. Knowledge in completing various batteries such
as CASIl as well as assessing the results of the battery.
Successfully facilitated a group for young adults in a therapeutic
setting to identify their strengths and build on current
limitations that obstruct the client’s ability to achieve desired
quality of life.

Social Work Practicum Student Public Defenders Office

Responsibilities: Facilitated entrance into the drug
treatment program. Facilitated transportation for clients to
enter inpatient drug treatment. Specifically worked with clients
that are at low risk socio-economic standing who could not
afford an attorney. Worked with individuals at C.C.D.C.,
families, court system, and inpatient facilities throughout the
semester.,

August 2004-December 2004 Social Work Practicum Student Creekside Hospice

January 2004-June 2004

Responsibilities: Observed client interviews at client’s
homes and/or nursing facilities. Initiate monthly follow-ups with
bereaved clients. Participate in weekly follow-ups with clients
who have been diagnosed as terminally ill. Advocate for clients
who were in need of medical assistance by completing required
paperwork. Administer and Research national hospice
requirements provided by the United States Government.
Assess clients’ psychosocial standings while in hospice care.

Social Work Practicum Student Protection Order Office

(Safe Nest)

Responsibilities: Interview clients in search of temporary
protection from the court of law.  Actively listened to
prospective clients individual interpretations of events. that led
to the pursuit of a protection order. Coordinated files of clients
who received services from the office. Accessed and utilized
state information regarding sentencing and “minutes” from
courts pertinent to the person who had a charge against them
and whether or not their order was approved.
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June 2003-December 2003

Volunteer Safe Nest Against Domestic Violence
Respoensibilities: Establish rapport with occupants in the
shelter. Actively listened to clients who were in need of

counsel.  Administered medication to clients with various
ailments. Participated in weekly phone conversations with
potential victims of domestic violence.

Professional Trainings

February 2015
November 2014
August 2014
April 2014
February 2014
December 2013
November 2013
October 2013
September 2013
August 2013
February 2013
December 2012
October 2012
August 2012
August 2012
June 2012

May 2011

April 2011

April 2011
February 2011
August 2010
January 2010
October 2009

Trauma, PTSD, and Traumatic Grief

Dialectical Behavior Therapy with Families, Parents, and Couples (Pt. [I)
Sexual Health Educator Program

Dialectical Behavior Therapy with Families, Parents, and Couples
Advanced Ethics: Malpractice and Liability in Helping Professions
Collaborative Assessment and Management of Suicidality

Arts of Mindfulness and Counseling Conference

Stage Il Treatment in Dialectical Behavioral Therapy

Stage Il Treatment in Dialectical Behavioral Therapy

Trauma Informed Care for Professionals

Ethics in Action

Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (Part Four)

Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (Part Three)

Together Facing the Challenge, Foster Care Supervisor Training
Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (Part Two)

Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (Part One)

3-5-7 Model Training

Overview: Dialectical Behavior Therapy

Independent Living Advanced Training Part One and Part Two
Child on Child Sexual Abuse

Recognizing and Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect

Dialectical Behavior Therapy (Basic and Advanced)

Attachment Issues of Childhood-An Overview
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June 2009

April 2009
February 2009
January 2009
October 2008
September 2007

August 2007

Licensure
July 2011
January 2011
August 2008
May 2005
April 2003
Awards

April 2015
March 2006
May 2005

Interests

Client Rights

Ethics: Professional Relationships and Boundary Issues
P.T.S5.D.: Making Sense of Trauma

Trauma Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy
Adoptcare Network Training: Serving Adoptive Families

Adoption Transplants

Member of National Association of Social Workers

Licensed Clinical Social Worker (State of Nevada)
C.P.R. Certified (Red Cross)

Licensed Intermediate Social Worker (State of Nevada)
Licensed Social Worker (State of Nevada)

C.P.R. Certified (Medic First Aid)

National Association for Social Workers: Rising Star Award
Star Fish Award/Employee of the Month (Division of Aging Services)

Phi Alpha (Social Work Honor Society, Inactive Member)

My interests are broad and various surrounding my career in Social Work; one of the endeavors that |
would like to begin is independent contract employment for individuals who receive varying
insurance coverage in the State of Nevada and are in need of additional therapeutic support to



enhance harmony in their lives. 1 am hardworking and committed to providing effective service
delivery to promote my clients well-being and seif-sufficiency. | received my Bachelor’s and Master’s
degree in Social Work from the University of Nevada, Las Vegas. | am currently a Licensed Clinical
Social Worker and | am looking forward to furthering my formal education in the future.

Various experiences that | have encountered while in my profession as well as previous field
practicum experiences that | have successfully completed have provided well-rounded exposure to a
variety of individuals with various socio-economic statuses and various social classes. | have a good
working knowledge of life issues that affect adults, children, and families. | believe the skills that |
have would be helpful to individuals with mental health issues.

[ consistently strive towards improving my skills and abilities; | am open to constructive criticism, as it
is critical and necessary for growth in this profession. My resume is enclosed for observation and
consideration of being added to the open panel provided through Harmony Health Care. The resume
reflects my accomplishments, which includes a National Dean’s List Honor, field experience working
with a variety of individuals from various backgrounds and a concentration of coursework related to
working with individuals from an interpersonal level to an organizational level.

Thank you for your consideration. | look forward to hearing from you.

Respectfully,

Vena M. Davis, L.C.S.W.
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Electronically Filed
10/12/2015 05:03:12 PM

STEVEN B. WOLFSON Qi b i

Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565 CLERK OF THE COURT
JACQUELINE BLUTH

Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #10625

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintift,
-Vs- CASE NO: (C-14-295158-1
MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR. :
43606049 DEPT NO: XXIII
Defendant.

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION TO ADMIT EVIDENCE
OF OTHER BAD ACTS

DATE OF HEARING:
TIME OF HEARING: 9:30 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through JACQUELINE BLUTH, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and
submits this Notice of Motion and Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Bad Acts.

This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if

deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.
I

1
i

w2013R178 1\13F17841-NOTM-(Sprowson_Melvyn)-004.docx
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NOTICE OF HEARING
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned

will bring the foregoing motion on for setting before the above entitled Court, in Department

XXIV thereof, on ,the 26 day of October, 2015, at 9:30 AM, or as soon

thereafter as counsel may be heard.

DATED this 9th day of October,5.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

- /3
7 / ' (eee-cre

IAGQUELINE BLUTH

Chief Deputy Dfstrict Attoghe
Nvadaﬁ: 0625 4

FACTS RELATEDTO THE 'UNDERLYING CASE
During the month of October 2013, Clark County School District Police Officer, Gary

Abbot, was contacted by the victim’s mother, Kathryn Smith, who requested help from Officer
Abbott because the victim had run away from home. Kathryn advised that she had filed a
runaway report with the Henderson Police Department on August 30, 2013. Officer Abbot
contacted HPD and was informed that the victim had been communicating with Defendant
based on emails and messages on craigslist.com. Proof of that communication was provided
to the Henderson Police Department.

Officer Abbott conducted a records check and learned that Defendant was a
kindergarten teacher at Wengert Elementary School, Las Vegas, Nevada. Officer Abbott and
Detective Platt met with Defendant at Wengert Elementary School on October 31, 2013.
Defendant agreed to speak with them and admitted to knowing the 16-year-old victim, stating
that he had communicated with her via text messages, craiglist.com and phone calls.
Defendant indicated that he chats with several people at one time and the messages sometimes
run together. Defendant denied knowing the victim’s whereabouts but did admit to wiring the

victim $150.00, one time, in the past.

w2013\ 78\41\13F] 7841-NDTM-(Sprowson_Melwn)—OU4.docx2
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On November 1, 2013, Officer Abbott went to Defendant’s apartment to conduct a
knock and talk. Officer Abbott knocked on the door of Defendant’s apartment and recognized
the juvenile female that opened the door as being the victim in this case. Officer Abbott then
contacted Sgt. Maciszak and informed him that the victim was at Defendant’s residence.

Sgt. Maciszak and Detective Schell went to Defendant’s residence and met with the
victim. The Defendant had posted an ad that stated, “Lonely Millionaire” and listed a fake
age of 30 years old. The victim replied that she was 16 years old and the two continued talking
online and getting to know each other on Craigslist and then moved to a program called “Kik”,
they also exchanged photographs.

In the beginning of their communication, the two were just friends but that changed
around August 1st when Defendant asked the victim to *go out” and they became official
boyfriend and girlfriend. Later on in the relationship the Victim actually found out Defendant
was 44 years old. During the course of their relationship Defendant asked Victim to send him

pictures and would direct her poses in the pictures.

The first time the Victim and the Defendant actually physically met each other was at
the roller skating rink where Victim was hanging out with her friend Jessica. The Victim told
her friend that Defendant was an old teacher of hers; the Victim later testified that she knew
she had to keep the relationship a secret because her mom would not approve. The Victim
even told the Defendant that she couldn’t tell her mom because her mom “wouldn’t be happy
at all”” with this type of situation. Therefore, the Victim and the Defendant used precautionary
methods so that her mom would not find out about the relationship. The Victim would make
sure that the Defendant wouldn’t call and they wouldn’t video chat when her mom was home.
The two even devised a plan that if anybody ever found out about their relationship she “would

just keep coming back to him.”

About a month or so after meeting the Defendant the Victim told her mom that she was
going to be staying the night at her friend’s house. Instead of going to her friend’s house, the
Victim was picked up by the Defendant and they went to his house. Afier the first night at the

Defendant’s home, the Victim called her mom and told her that she wanted to spend another

w2013R\1 78\41\13F17841 -NDTM-(Sprowson_Mclvyn)—O04.ducx3
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night at her friend’s home and her mother said that was fine. During these two nights J.T. and
the Defendant were intimate once or twice. The Defendant did not wear a condom and told
the victim that he could not have kids so they didn’t need to use a condom. After they spent
those nights together the Defendant gave her a promise ring and promised they would be
together. When Victim returned home her mom saw the ring that the Defendant had given
her. After the Victim gave her mother several conflicting stories of how she got the ring, her
mother figured out that she had not been honest with her and had not been staying over at her
friend’s house. The Victim’s mother then went through the Victim’s phone records and saw
there had been an overload of communication with a certain number. The Victim’s mother
then took away the victim’s phone and computer. Later that same evening, the Victim snuck
into her mother’s room and e-mailed the Defendant asking him to come and pick her up,
because if he didn’t she wouldn’t be able to be with him. Defendant agreed to come and get
the Victim and told her to bring her birth certificate and social security card, because she would
need them to get a job and other things when she got older. They then devised a plan for her
to stick it out, in the house, until she was 17 and a half, and then they were going to get married
and she was going to go to school.

When the two got to the Defendant’s house he changed his telephone number because
the Victim had told him her mother had figured everything out. The Victim lived with
Defendant for two months, from August 28th until November 1st.

While living with the Defendant, they made an agreement for her not to attend school
because she would be found if she did go. They also agreed that she should go undetected
until she was 17 and a half, when she would be old enough to get married and go to school.
During the period that Victim lived with Defendant there were rules; these rules included
having no guys in the house and for her not to go outside because she could be found. The
Victim would sometimes ask Defendant to take her out of the house but he would be too tired.
When Defendant did take her out of the house it would always be at night, and she would dress
like a boy with a hat, glasses, and baggier clothing.

During the eight or nine weeks that the Victim was with Defendant she and Defendant

w2013 784 MV3F17841 -NOTM-(Sprcwson_Melvyn)—OM.docx4
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stumbled upon her family on Twitter, looking for her. The Victim discovered that her mom
was looking for her after her aunt posted on Twitter indicating that she was missing and to
please repost. Victim and Defendant also saw posts on Facebook as well. Defendant told her
that her mom wanted control over her and that is why her family was posting.

The Victim and Defendant put a plan in place if they ever got into a position where they
were found. The plan was that she would just keep coming back; if they had to communicate
they could do so by using a name that they intended to name their first child and use
Defendant’s birthdate. The Victim later told her mother that Defendant told her that if they
were discovered not to worry because he had $30,000 and he would come and get her. They
also planned for her 1o tell the police that he was looking for a roommate and she found him
on Craigslist. The Victim was not to discuss their relationship and it was supposed to look
like they were just roommates.

On November 1st, the police came to the door while she was home alone. She spoke
with them but she was not honest with them, in regards to her and the Defendant having sex.
She also told the police that they were just roommates, in her mind she was sticking to their
plan. After speaking with the Victim, police again encountered Defendant at the school in
which he worked. He again denied knowing the Victim specifically or knowing where she

was at. He was then arrested.

FACTS RELATED TO INFORMATION STATE IS SEEKING TO ADMIT
INTO EVIDENCE
On January 2, 2015, Officer Malone with Henderson Police Department was dispatched

to the Victim’s home where he met the Victim’s mother, K..S.

K.S. explained that her daughter is a current victim in an active court case wherein
Melvyn Sprowson is the suspect.

K.S. told the officer that she heard her daughter scream "he found me." The Victim
then showed K.S. her iPod in which she had received several Instagram messages from

username "audrey 6697".
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The Victim told her mom she recently accepted a friend request from "audrey 6697",
without having knowledge of who the person was. The conversation went as follows:
e Victim to "audrey_6697" a message, "your name is the name I wanted to name
my daughter and my birthday!!!"
e M"audrey 6697" responded with, "is it or do we know someone in common;)."
e The Victim then responded by asking if "audrey 6697" was "Mel?"
e "audrey 6697" responded with " ;)"
e In the following message "audrey 6697" stated "it's me" and "11/19/68",
which is the Defendant’s birthday.
e Later "audrey 6697" admits "It's me Mel", " I'll get in trouble if they find out
I'm talking to you", "Plecase don't say anything to anyone."
e "audrey_6697" then makes mention of the fact he is in Oklahoma.
o "audrey_6697" sent several other messages about private issues, to include an
argument about him giving her an STD.
While Officer Malone was at the home taking the report he noted that "audrey 6697"

changer his username several times to the following "lisa_thomas04” and

“nowwaydude353",

The Victim emailed screen shots of the messages to Officer Malone, which were
booked into evidence.

On January 14, 2014 the Henderson Police Department records were forwarded to
| Detective Caldwell with Clark County School District Police. An investigation was then

started and conducted. Detectives then served Instagram and Facebook with a search warrant

“ for the aforementioned user names,
On 1/20/15, Detective Caldwell received a response from Facebook that showed the
user accounts "nowaydude555", "lisa_thomas04" and “audrey 6697” were all accessed using

the following IP (24.139.36.19) and email address (sequence580(@hotmail.com). The IP

(24.139.36.19) address was using an internet based application called "Who Is", it showed the

IP address was owned by Fidelity Communications.

w 2013117841\ 3F 17841 -NOTM-(Sprowson__Melvyn)—OM‘doch
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On 1/20/15 Detective Caldwell faxed an administrative subpoena to Fidelity |
Communications requesting user information for the aforementioned IP address. Fidelity
responded identifying the owner of IP address 24.139.36.19 as Delux Inn, 1709 NW Cache
Road, Lawton OK 73507. Detectives then called the Delux Inn and spoke with Bob Patel,
Manager. Mr. Patel confirmed that anyone could access the internet from the hotel.

Detectives then checked the address of the Delux Inn using google maps and found it
to be approximately 3.8 miles from the listed address of Melvyn Sprowson Jr.

Detectives then called the Lawton Police Department and asked to speak with Detective
Lombardo who is a SVU detective in Oklahoma.

On 1/27/15, Det. Lombardo went to the Deluxe Inn at 1709 NW Cache Rd and Spoke
to owners Bob and Usha Patel. The owners allowed the Detective to look through the
registrations cards where she found a registration for “Mel Sprowson” which also gave an
address listed. The owners stated that Sprowson checked in to their motel on 12-28-14 and
stayed for seven consecutive days. Sprowson further listed a Ford Mustang with a license
number ***KWC OK as the vehicle he was driving. Detective further showed a photo of
Sprowson to the owners who did identified this individual as the person who rented room
#107.

STATEMENT OF THE LAW

I. DEFENDANT’S POST-RELEASE CONDUCT IS ADMISSIBLE BECAUSE IT IS
RELEVANT TO SHOW HIS INTENT, MOTIVE, PLAN, AND PREPARATION.

Evidence that Defendant Sprowson violated the no-contact order is relevant in this case

to prove Defendant’s intent, motive, plan, and preparation. NRS 48.045(2) provides:

Evidence of other crimes, wrongs or acts is not admissible to prove
the character of a person in order to show that he acted in
conformity therewith. It may, however, be admissible for other
purposes, such as proof of motive, opportunity, intent, preparation,
plan, knowledge, identity, or absence of mistake or accident.

In order to admit such evidence, the State must establish that (1) the incident is relevant

to the crime charged; (2) the act is proven by clear and convincing evidence; and (3) the

w: 20131784 NI3F17841 -NOTM-(Spmwsnn_Mc]vyn)-004.ducx7
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probative value of the evidence is not substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair
prejudice. Tinch v. State, 113 Nev. 1170, 1176 (1997);, Walker v. State, 112 Nev. 819, 824,
921 P.2d 923, 926 (1996); Petrocelli v. State, 101 Nev. 46, 52, 692 P.2d 503, 508 (1985).

However, the decision to admit or exclude such evidence lies within the discretion of the court.

A decision will not be reversed absent manifest error. Kazalyn v. State, 108 Nev. 67, 825 P.2d

| 578 (1992); Halbower v. State, 93 Nev. 212, 562 P.2d 485 (1977).

The landmark case discussed in all motions to admit evidence of other bad acts is

Petrocelli v. State, 101 Nev. 46, 692 P.2d 503 (1985). In that case, Petrocelli was charged

with shooting a car salesman in the head with a .22 caliber handgun. Petrocelli claimed that
the shooting was an accident that occurred during an argument with the car dealer. Id. at 49.
During the trial, the court allowed the State to present evidence that Petrocelli had previously
become embroiled in an argument with a female, that he dragged her out of her place of
employment, and killed her with a .22 caliber handgun. Id. at 52. Petrocelli had claimed her
death was also an accident. Id. The Nevada Supreme Court upheld the trial court's decision
to allow such evidence to establish the absence of mistake or accident. Id. The Court reasoned

that:

. .. that the "two killings with the same gun involving the same
erson, Mr. Petrocelli, who within a short period of time

fcommitted the killings]" bore sufficient similarity to admit the

evidence at trial.

The Nevada Courts have recognized the value of evidence of

other crimes and have upheld its admissibility in sex cases.

The State is requesting the Court to look at each of the following sections of this motion
in order to assess whether this evidence is admissible. The State submits that the evidence the
State is seeking to admit is relevant; it can be proven by clear and convincing evidence, and
its probative value is not substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice.

The State submits this evidence is admissible under NRS 48.045 in the following areas:

Motive and Intent

Defendant’s motive and intent have become a material issue in this case. In every
argument, whether it is justice or district court, the Defense has stated that it was the victim’s

idea to “run away” and that her mother made her so miserabie that she was the one who was
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so desperate to get out of her house. Previous defense counsel as well as the Defendant have
stated that the Defendant had no motive or intent in any of this, but it was actually the child
who basically moved herself in. Defense has painted Defendant as an innocuous bystander,
rather than the mastermind behind this entire crime.

In every court appearance since this case began there has been discussion of the victim’s
mental state, her current treatment, and her well-being. Defendant sat through each and every
one of those arguments and heard that the victim was struggling. In fact when Defendant was
released from custody the State made clear that they were requesting he have absolutely no
contact with the Victim in this case. This Honorable Court agreed and clearly told Defendant
that he was prohibited from contacting the Victim in any way.

Knowing about the Victim’s condition and being strictly informed by this Court of the
no contact order, Defendant still could not abide by those rules and reached out to Victim.
This could not be any clearer or indicative of Defendant’s motive and intent. In interviews
with police the Victim has stated that the two of them made a plan if they got caught, “she
would just keep coming back to him” and he had saved $30,000 they could use to get away.
Furthermore, if they needed to contact one another without anybody knowing who they were
they planned to use the name they were going to name their first child, and use the Defendant’s
birthdate. When Defendant reached out to her, he used both of these clues. Defendant
reaching out to her once they were both free from constraint illustrates his motive and intent
was to continue on with their plan, reunite, and keep her from her mother.

Plan and Preparation

As aforementioned, there was a plan to keep reuniting if they were separated between
the Defendant and the Victim in this case. The plan was unsuccessful for a few reasons, mainly
due to Defendant being incarcerated and Victim being in an inpatient mental facility. Since,
neither of them were free to do what they wished, neither could follow through with their plan
to keep going back to one another and/or run away. The first chance that Defendant had once
he got out of custody and J.T. got out of the facility he contacted her. The State believes this

is just further evidence of his plan and preparation to put his plan in action to be with J.T. and
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keep her away from her guardians.

The State submits that it has proven which areas of 48.045 are applicable in this
situation. However, in order for this evidence to be admissible, three prongs need to be met.
The three prongs are discussed below.

Relevance

This is incredibly relevant when taking into consideration the fact that Defendant has
completely absolved himself from any blame. The defense has always been and will be that
Defendant had nothing to do with this and it was all driven by J.T. The law says that consent
by a minor can never be a defense to kidnapping, while that is true, acting like you had nothing
to do with any of this, and it was completely planned and carried out by J.T. would be a
defense. The jury is entitled to know the complete story of what happened, Defendant’s
actions before, during, and after are all relevant to this case.

Clear and Convincing Evidence

The State submits with a hearing the State could prove that Defendant’s conduct could
be proven by clear and convincing evidence. Defendant used information that he would only
know, the IP address comes back to a hotel he was staying at, and the Instagram account is
associated with his personal information.

Prejudice v. Probative

In this case, the probative value far exceeds any prejudice. Really there is little to no
prejudice handed to Defendant if the jury knows that he contacted the Victim after he was told
not to. The State does not intend to present evidence that this action wound him back in
custody. So, in regards to “other bad act™ evidence, it doesn’t get much more innocuous than
this. That doesn’t mean it’s not relevant though, it is completely relevant because it shows
Defendant’s motive, intent, and plan to reunite with J.T.

The State believes this evidence to have great probative value because it shows
Defendant’s true intentions and motives. Not only did Defendant violate the no contact order
but when he did so, he used tactics that he and J.T. had come up with if they ran into the

situation where they were forced apart.
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This is not a situation where the State is attempting to bring in prior sexual bad acts, of
which the Defendant has been investigated for previously. The State is merely trying to show
that Defendant is not a complete bystander in this entire situation, but an active participant in
keeping J.T. from her mother. At trial the State is responsible for proving this case beyond a
reasonable doubt, this evidence is completely probative and relevant and not the type of

behavior that would prejudice Defendant.

CONCLUSION

Based on all of the foregoing reasons, the State respectfully this motion be granted.

s
DATED this #th day of October, 201.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #/04 565

B l MIW/ 2L OF F
ACQUELINEBLU
Chie De:)uty 1strlctA orney

Nevada 10625
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this /77/ /*day of

October, 2015, by e-mail to:

tgd/MVU

MICHAEL YOHAY, Dep. Public Defender
(Standby Counsel)
E-mail: yohaymr(@clarkcountynv.gov

MELVYN SPROWSON, ID #5996049
Clark County Detention Center

330 S. Casino Center Blvd., LVNV 89101
(hand delivery)

Secreta "t;or tl]<eE| %istrict Atforney's Office

Special Victims Unit
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Electronically Filed
01/08/2016 08:17.42 AM

ORDR i b i

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

* Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT

Nevada Bar #001565
JACQUELINE BLUTH

"Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #002698

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff |
DISTRICT COURT
CILARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintift,

-VS- CASE NO: C-14-295158-1
MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR., DEPT NO: XXl
#5996049

Defendant.

ORDER GRANTING STATE'S MOTIOECTTCS) ADMIT EVIDENCE OF OTHER BAD

DATE OF HEARING: 12/10/15
TIME OF HEARING: 9:30 A.M.

THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the
10th day of December, 2015, the Defendant being present, in Proper Person, the Plaintiff
being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney, through JACQUELINE
BLUTH, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and the Court having heard the arguments of
counsel and Defendant and good cause appearing therefor,

THE STATE’S MOTION to Admit Evidence of Other Bad Acts is granted under the
three prongs of Petrocielliv. State, 101 Nev. 46, (1985). The Court’s findings are as follows:

The Court finds the evidence presented to be clear and convincing. The Court finds
the testimony of Detective Matt Caldwell to be credible. Through Detective Caldwell’s

investigation he found that the usernames associated with the Instagram account came back
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to Defendant, as well as the email account associated with the Instagram account.
Additionally, his investigation revealed that the IP address associated with these accounts
came from a hotel where Defendant was staying during that time period. This hotel was also
found to be 3.8 miles from Defendant’s home. Hotel records show Defendant to be staying
at that hotel on a registration card which has Defendant’s personal information, including his
driver’s license number, which was also presented at the hearing. Also, the Court finds the
testimony of the Victim, J.T., to be credible regarding this act. The information in the
Instagram conversation is information that only the Victim and Defendant knew; such as the
name they planned on naming their first daughter, as well as the dates of birth for both the
Victim and the Defendant.

The Court finds the probative value of this evidence is not substantially outweighed
by the danger of unfair prejudice.,

The Court finds this evidence to be relevant for the purposes of showing Defendant’s
motive and intent. This conduct illustrates Defendant’s continuous attempt to be with the
Victim even after being admonished by the Court to have no contact with the Victim. The
Instagram records show Defendant to have been communicating with the Victim such things

as “I love you,” “Does this mean we are breaking up” and “Do not tell anyone.”

-Gl L
DATED this day of Deceniber, 2015. /
STEVEN B. WOLFSON

CT GE A
Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565 JUDGE STEFANY A. MILEY

&

BY

UEL BLUTH
ef Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #002698
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

o/ lr
I certify that on the 8 Aday of | & : 2@1—5’ I mailed a copy of the foregoing Order

to:

ted/MVU

BY

MELVYN SPROWSON,; #295158
Defendant in Proper Person

Clark County Detention Center
330 S. Casino Center Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

T. DRIVER
Secretary for the District Attorney’s Office
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Electronically Filed

10/19/2015 08:02:09 AM

NWEW % t. %\Mb—-
STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
JACQUELINE BLUTH

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010625

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

CLERK OF THE COURT

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

“VS- CASE NO: (C-14-295158-1

MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR., .
45006049 DEPT NO: XXIII

Defendant.

SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF WITNESSES

AND/OR EXPERT WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234]

TO: MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR., Defendant; and

TO: MICHAEL YOHAY, Deputy Public Defender, as Standby Counsel:
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF

NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses and/or expert witnesses in its case in chief:

*indicates additional witness(es) and/or modification(s)

ABBOTT, GARY CCSDPD#0199

*BERRERA, BERTNA 1509 MAGNOLIA AVE, LA, CA 90006
CALDWELL, MATT CCSDPD#0368

COR, or Designee CCSD Records

COR, or Designee CCSDPD Records

W:A2013R 178\ 1IN 3F17841-NWEW-(SPROWSON_MELVYN)-001.DOCX
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COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COX, TROY

FISCHER, MICHELLE
GATES, (Volunteer) #1503
HARRIS, KATHY
LEAVA, CHANTEL, or Designee
LINDSEY, GILBERT
LOGIUDICE, Detective
LOMBARDO, NANCY
MACISZAK, MITCHELL
MALONE, Officer

*MARROQUIN, KENNY
PATEL, BOB

PATEL, USHA

Cingular Wireless

Facebook/Instagram
1601 Willow Road, Menlo Park, CA 94025

Fidelity Communications
HPD Records

Los Angeles Police Dept.
150 N. Los Angeles, Los Angeles, CA 90012

Los Angeles Police Dept. Records
150 N. Los Angeles, Los Angeles, CA 90012
MSN/Hotmail

Red Rock Jewelers, 1325 W. Warm Springs,
Henderson, NV89014

Sprint

Wells Fargo

CCSDPD #UNK (Forensics)
CAC

Henderson PD

c/o Clark County DA’s Office
Fidelity Communications

c/o Clark County DA’s Office
HPD #983

Lawton Police Department, Oklahoma
CCSDPD #0308

HPD #1456

1932 ORCHARD AVE, LA, CA 90007

Deluxe Inn
1709 NW Cache Rd., Lawton, OK 73507

Deluxe Inn
1709 NW Cache Rd., Lawton, OK 73507
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*PEREZ, EMILY ANN 1809 MAGNOLIA AVE, LA, CA 90006
PLATT, DAVID CCSDPD #0217

*RODRIGUEZ, JENNIFER 1832 S WEST MORELAND #5, LA, CA 90006
*RODRIGUEZ, VERNICE 1411 MENCO AVE #1, LA, CA 90006
SAVASPANO, DENISE CFSI, 8815 Barton St., Riverside, CA 92508
SCHELL, JEFFREY CCSDPD #0295

SMITH, CHERYL c/o Clark County DA’s Office

SMITH, KATHRYN c/o Clark County DA’s Office

SWARTWOOD, AMBER HPD #1148

TORRES, JAYSENIA c/o Clark County DA’s Office

STRANGE, DR. MAY A - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 — Will
testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.
Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and
diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

SILSBY, MS, PA-C - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 — Will testify
as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will
testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the
Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

CRUMP, DANIEL, LCSW - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 —
Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.
Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and
diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

DONALDSON, ROBYN, Psychologist — 2410 W. Horizon Ridge, #100, Henderson,
NV, 89052 - Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of
expertise. Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy,
treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for

continued care.

/
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ROSENMAN, DR. EUGENE - 2775 S. Jones Blvd., #101, Las Vegas, NV 89146 -
Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.
Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counsling/therapy, treatment, and
diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

CHELLI, FRANCES, CSW Intern, H.O.P.E. Counseling - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

REID, NOEL, CSW Intern, H.O.P.E. Counseling — (702) - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

NWAPA, DR. EMMANUEL, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to his/her practice
and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

BRENNAN GARCIA, LYNDSEY, LCSW, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to
his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will
testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the
Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

RODRIGUEZ, DR. BRYN, LCSW, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

DAVIS, VENA, LCSW, Mojave Adult/Family Services - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this

case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.
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These witnesses are in addition to those witnesses endorsed on the Information or

Indictment and any other witness for which a separate Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert

Witnesses has been filed.

A copy of each expert witness’ curriculum vitae, if available, is attached hereto.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/JAMES R. SWEETIN for
JACQUELINE BLUTH
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010625

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 19th day of

October, 2015, by e-mail to:

hjc/SVU:MVU

MICHAEL YOHAY, Dep. Public Defender
(Standby Counsel)
E-mail: yohaymr@clarkcountynv.gov

MELVYN SPROWSON, ID #5996049
Clark County Detention Center

330 S. Casino Center Blvd., LVNV 89101
(hand delivery)

/sf HOWARD CONRAD
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
Special Victims Unit
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Electronically Filed
10/26/2015 10:39:54 AM

NWEW 4 Sl
STEVEN B. WOLFSON %

Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565

JACQUELINE BLUTH

Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #010625

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

-V5- CASE NO: CC-14-295158-1

MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR., :
45006049 DEPT NO: XXIII

Defendant.

SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF WITNESSES
AND/OR EXPERT WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234]

TO: MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR., Defendant; and

TO: MICHAEL YOHAY, Deputy Public Defender, as Standby Counsel:
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF

NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses and/or expert witnesses in its case in chief:

*indicates additional witness(es) and/or modification(s)

ABBOTT, GARY CCSDPD#0199

BERRERA, BERTNA 1509 MAGNOLIA AVE, LA, CA 90006
COR, or Designee AT&T

CALDWELL, MATT CCSDPD+#0368

COR, or Designee CCSD Records

WAZ013R 781N 3F1 7841 -NWEW-(SPROWSON_MELVYN)-003.DOCX
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COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COX, TROY

FISCHER, MICHELLE
GATES, (Volunteer) #1503
HARRIS, KATHY
LEAVA, CHANTEL, or Designee
LINDSEY, GILBERT
LOGIUDICE, Detective
LOMBARDO, NANCY
MACISZAK, MITCHELL
MALONE, Officer
MARROQUIN, KENNY
MARSHALL, MIKE
O'LEARY, HEATHER

CCSDPD Records
Cingular Wireless

Facebook/Instagram
1601 Willow Road, Menlo Park, CA 94025

Fidelity Communications
HPD Records

Los An%cles Police Dept.
150 N. Los Angeles, Los Angeles, CA 90012

Los Anﬁeles Police Dept. Records
150 N. Los Angeles, Los Angeles, CA 90012
MSN/Hotmail

Red Rock Jewelers, 1325 W. Warm Springs,
Henderson, NV89014

Sprint

Wells Fargo

CCSDPD #UNK (Forensics)
CAC

Henderson PD

¢/o Clark County DA’s Office
Fidelity Communications

c/o Clark County DA’s Office
HPD #983

Lawton Police Department, Oklahoma
CCSDPD #0308

HPD #1456

1932 ORCHARD AVE, LA, CA 90007
CCSDPD
5401 WELLS CATHEDRAL AVE, LVN 89130
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O'LEARY, LISA 5401 WELLS CATHEDRAL AVE, LVN 89130

PARENT/GUARDIAN of UNK
Patterson, Jessica
PATEL, BOB Deluxe Inn

1709 NW Cache Rd., Lawton, OK 73507
PATEL, USHA Deluxe Inn

1709 NW Cache Rd., Lawton, OK 73507
PATTERSON, JESSICA UNK
PEREZ, EMILYANN 1809 MAGNOLIA AVE, LA, CA 90006
PLATT, DAVID CCSDPD #0217
RODRIGUEZ, JENNIFER 1832 S WEST MORELAND #5, LA, CA 90006
RODRIGUEZ, VERNICE 1411 MENCO AVE #1, LA, CA 90006
SAVASPANO, DENISE CFSI, 8815 Barton St., Riverside, CA 92508
SCHELL, JEFFREY CCSDPD #0295
SMITH, CHERYL c/o Clark County DA’s Office
SMITH, KATHRYN c/o Clark County DA’s Office
SWARTWOOD, AMBER HPD #1148
TORRES, JAYSENIA c¢/o Clark County DA’s Office

STRANGE, DR. MAYA - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 — Will
testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.
Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and
diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

SILSBY, MS, PA-C - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 — Will testify
as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.. Additionally, will
testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the
Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

CRUMP, DANIEL, LCSW - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 —
Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.

Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and

3

W:A2013R\1 781\ 3F 17841 -NWEW-(SPROWSON_MELVYN}-003.DOCX
737




O 00 ~1 O W B W RN e

| DR S T N TR N TR N S S e e e e e e T

diagn(;sis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.
DONALDSON, ROBYN, Psychologist — 2410 W. Horizon Ridge, #100, Henderson,
NV, 89052 - Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of
expertise. Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy,
treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for
continued care.
ROSENMAN, DR. EUGENE — 2775 S. Jones Blvd., #101, Las Vegas, NV 89146 -

Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.

- Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counsling/therapy, treatment, and

diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

CHELLI, FRANCES, CSW Intern, H.O.P.E. Counseling - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.,

REID, NOEL, CSW Intern, H.O.P.E. Counseling — (702) - Will testify as to his/her .
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treaiment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

NWAPA, DR. EMMANUEL, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to his/her practice
and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

BRENNAN GARCIA, LYNDSEY, LCS‘W, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to
his/her practice and practice methods within his’her field of expertise. Additionally, will
testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the

Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care,
//
/
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*RODRIGUEZ, DR. BRYN, LCSW, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care. *(CV attached)

DAVIS, VENA, LCSW, Mojave Adult/Family Services - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

These witnesses are in addition to those witnesses endorsed on the Information or
Indictment and any other witness for which a separate Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert
Witnesses has been filed.

A copy of each expert witness’ curriculum vitae, if available, is attached hereto.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ JAMES R. SWEETIN for
JACQUELINE BLUTH
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010625
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 26th day of
October, 2015, by e-mail to:

MICHAEL YOHAY, Dep. Public Defender
(Standby Counsel)
E-mail: yohaymr@clarkcountynv.gov

MELVYN SPROWSON, ID #5996049
Clark County Detention Center

330 S. Casino Center Blvd., LVNV 89101
(hand delivery)

/s/_T. DRIVER
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
Special Victims Unit

I tgd/SVU:MVU

6
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Bryn Rodriguez

9712 Cameo Rose Lane, Las Vegas, NV 89134
Mobile: (323) 213-5884
E-mail: 2BrynRodriguez@gmail.com

Work Experience:

Internal Medicine and Pediatrics: Bryn Rodriguez Medical Services P.C. 8/12-present
Cared for both adult and pediatrics patients in a variety of inpatient settings including
inpatient acute hospitalization, acute and subacute rehabilitation centers, psychiatric
hospitals and nursing homes in Las Vegas, Nevada.

Hospitalist: IPC The Hospitalist Company 10/2011-7/2013
Attended patients in the inpatient and rehab settings to achieve the best care possible for
my adult patients while residing in the hospital mainly at Southern Hills Hospital and
Summerlin Hospital.

House Physician: Monrovia Medical Center 8/2008-11/2010
Responded to emergent patient needs overnight and performed pre-operative evaluations
of patients undergoing mostly orthopedic procedures.

Leadership Positions Held:

Director of Quality and Medical Executive Committee Member - elected position
Associate Medical Director of Health South Desert Canyon 2015-present

Medical Director of Las Vegas Post Acute Pediatric Unit 2014-present
Associate Medical Director of Harmony Hospice 2013-present
Co-Chair of the Antimicrobial Stewardship Committee 2013-present

Chair of the Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee, Southern Hills Hospital 2012-present
Medical Director of Torrey Pines Subacute Rehabilitation Hospital 2013-2014

Physician Representative, Ethics Committee, Southern Hills Hospital 2012-present
Physician Advisory Group, Southern Hills Hospital 2012-present

Education:

Residency: LAC+USC (Los Angeles, CA) 2007-2011
Specialty: Internal Medicine and Pediatrics

Medical Doctorate: Emory University (Atlanta, GA) 2007
Away Rotations: Pediatric Infectious Disease at the Hospital de Ninos in San Juan,
Costa Rica (11/06) and General Med-Peds at Children’s Hospital #2 and Victoria
Healthcare International Clinic in Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Master of Arts: University of Virginia (Charlottesville, VA) 2003
Bioethics Thesis: Physician Responsibility and Health Promotion — A Doctor’s Role in
Preventing Obesity

Bachelor of Science: Duke University (Durham, NC) 2002

741



Major: The Bio-Psycho-Social Human Experience, Foreign Exchange Experience:
Introduction to Field Ethnobiology, Organization for Tropical Studies, Costa Rica

Secondary Diploma: Bexley High School (Bexley, OH) 1999
Valedictorian

Certifications:
Board Certified in Internal Medicine 8/2011
Board Certified in Pediatrics 10/2011
Nevada Medical License 7/2015
BLS and ACLS completed 4/2015

Research Publications:

Tschannen-Moran BM, Lewis E, Farrell SP. Childhood Obesity: Policy Issues in 2003.
Journal of Pediatric Nursing. 2003 Dec; 18(6): 416-420

Blaxalil BC, Tschannen-Moran BM, Milano CA, Koch WJ. Differential Gene Expression and
Genomic Patient Stratification Following Left Ventricular Assist Device (LVAD)
Support. Journal of the American College of Cardiology. 2003 Apr 2; 41(7): 1096-106.

Blaxall, Tschannen-Moran, Milano and Koch. Heart Failure Society of America Abstracts, 2001,
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Electronically Filed

10/23/2015 02:14:45 PM

NWEW % t. %\Mb—-
STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
JACQUELINE BLUTH

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010625

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

CLERK OF THE COURT

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

“VS- CASE NO: (C-14-295158-1

MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR., .
45006049 DEPT NO: XXIII

Defendant.

THIRD SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF WITNESSES
AND/OR EXPERT WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234]

TO: MELVYN PERRY SPROWSON, JR., Defendant; and

TO: MICHAEL YOHAY, Deputy Public Defender, as Standby Counsel:
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF

NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses and/or expert witnesses in its case in chief:

*indicates additional witness(es) and/or modification(s)

ABBOTT, GARY CCSDPD#0199

BERRERA, BERTNA 1509 MAGNOLIA AVE, LA, CA 90006
*COR, or Designee AT&T

CALDWELL, MATT CCSDPD#0368

COR, or Designee CCSD Records

W:A2013R 178N 3F17841-NWEW-(SPROWSON_ MELVYN)-002.DOCX
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COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee
COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COR, or Designee

COX, TROY

FISCHER, MICHELLE
GATES, (Volunteer) #1503
HARRIS, KATHY
LEAVA, CHANTEL, or Designee
LINDSEY, GILBERT
LOGIUDICE, Detective
LOMBARDO, NANCY
MACISZAK, MITCHELL
MALONE, Officer

MARROQUIN, KENNY
*MARSHALL, MIKE
*O'LEARY, HEATHER

CCSDPD Records

Cingular Wireless

Facebook/Instagram
1601 Willow Road, Menlo Park, CA 94025

Fidelity Communications
HPD Records

Los Angeles Police Dept.
150 N. Los Angeles, Los Angeles, CA 90012

Los Angeles Police Dept. Records
150 N. Los Angeles, Los Angeles, CA 90012
MSN/Hotmail

Red Rock Jewelers, 1325 W. Warm Springs,
Henderson, NV89014

Sprint

Wells Fargo

CCSDPD #UNK (Forensics)
CAC

Henderson PD

c/o Clark County DA’s Office
Fidelity Communications

c/o Clark County DA’s Office
HPD #983

Lawton Police Department, Oklahoma
CCSDPD #0308

HPD #1456

1932 ORCHARD AVE, LA, CA 90007
CCSDPD
5401 WELLS CATHEDRAL AVE, LVN 89130
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*O'LEARY, LISA
*PARENT/GUARDIAN of

Patterson, Jessica

PATEL, BOB

PATEL, USHA

*PATTERSON, JESSICA

PEREZ, EMILYANN
PLATT, DAVID

RODRIGUEZ, JENNIFER
RODRIGUEZ, VERNICE
SAVASPANO, DENISE
SCHELL, JEFFREY
SMITH, CHERYL
SMITH, KATHRYN
SWARTWOOD, AMBER
TORRES, JAYSENIA

5401 WELLS CATHEDRAL AVE, LVN 89130

UNK

Deluxe Inn

1709 NW Cache Rd., Lawton, OK 73507
Deluxe Inn

1709 NW Cache Rd., Lawton, OK 73507
UNK

1809 MAGNOLIA AVE, LA, CA 90006
CCSDPD #0217

1832 S WEST MORELAND #5, LA, CA 90006
1411 MENCO AVE #1, LA, CA 90006

CFSI, 8815 Barton St., Riverside, CA 92508
CCSDPD #0295

c/o Clark County DA’s Office

c/o Clark County DA’s Office

HPD #1148

c/o Clark County DA’s Office

STRANGE, DR. MAY A - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 — Will
testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.
Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and
diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

SILSBY, MS, PA-C - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 — Will testify
as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will
testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the
Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

CRUMP, DANIEL, LCSW - Willow Springs, 690 Edison Way, Reno, NV 89502 —
Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.

Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and

3
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diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

DONALDSON, ROBYN, Psychologist — 2410 W. Horizon Ridge, #100, Henderson,
NV, 89052 - Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of
expertise. Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy,
treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for
continued care.

ROSENMAN, DR. EUGENE - 2775 S. Jones Blvd., #101, Las Vegas, NV 89146 -
Will testify as to his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise.
Additionally, will testify to the examination, observations, counsling/therapy, treatment, and
diagnosis of the Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

CHELLI, FRANCES, CSW Intern, H.O.P.E. Counseling - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

REID, NOEL, CSW Intern, H.O.P.E. Counseling — (702) - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

NWAPA, DR. EMMANUEL, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to his/her practice
and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

BRENNAN GARCIA, LYNDSEY, LCSW, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to
his/her practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will
testify to the examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the
Victim in this case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

//
//

4

W:A2013R 178\ N 3F17841-NWEW-(S PROWSONiMELVYN)—OOZ.E(G)CX
7




O o0 1 O i AW e

b DN NN DN N N NN e e e e e e e et et e
o ~1 o n BB W N = O DOy e, W N = O

RODRIGUEZ, DR. BRYN, LCSW, Monte Vista Hospital - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

DAVIS, VENA, LCSW, Mojave Adult/Family Services - Will testify as to his/her
practice and practice methods within his/her field of expertise. Additionally, will testify to the
examination, observations, counseling/therapy, treatment, and diagnosis of the Victim in this
case, Jaysenia Torres, including any plans for continued care.

These witnesses are in addition to those witnesses endorsed on the Information or
Indictment and any other witness for which a separate Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert
Witnesses has been filed.

A copy of each expert witness’ curriculum vitae, if available, is attached hereto.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/JAMES R. SWEETIN for
JACQUELINE BLUTH
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010625
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 23RD day of

October, 20135, by e-mail to:

hjc/SVU:MVU

MICHAEL YOHAY, Dep. Public Defender
(Standby Counsel)
E-mail: yohaymr@clarkcountynv.gov

MELVYN SPROWSON, ID #5996049
Clark County Detention Center

330 S. Casino Center Blvd., LVNV 89101
(hand delivery)

/s HOWARD CONRAD
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
Special Victims Unit
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STEFANY A. MILEY
DISTRICT JUDGE

CEPARTMENT TWENTY THREE
LAS VEGAS NV 88101-2408

Electronically Filed
11/05/2015 07:192:09 PM

DISTRICT COURT i b i

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA CLERK OF THE COURT
T
THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO: C-14-295158-1
PLAINTIFF,
DEPARTMENT 23
VS.

MELVYN SPROWSON, JR.
DEFENDANT.

Receipt of Copy of Protected Information and Records from Vena M. Davis,
Mojave Adult, Child & Family Services

Received from Carmen Alper, Judicial Executive Assistant to Honorable
Stefany A. Miley, District Court Judge, Department XXIII, a true and correct copy

of the following documents: Court Exhibit #1, Filed Under Seal — protected

information being held by Vena M. Davis, Mojave Adult, Child & Family Services,
6375 W. Charleston Blvd., #100, Las Vegas, NV 89146, consisting of any and all
mental health and/or medical records for patient: Jaysenia Torres, DOB:
BN i cluding, but not limited to any/all intake paperwork, therapy notes,
diagnosis, prescription(s), methods of treatment and physical examinations given or
provided on or about August 2013 to the present.
The parties are not to disclose and/or disseminate the contents of the records
to anyone as these documents will rem i["l' under seal.
Receipt acknowledged by: WW
Michael Yohay, Es{l.@lichefeuder’s Office

Dated: loj28 /i3
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STEFANY A. MILEY
DISTRICT JUDGE

DEPARTMENT TWENTY THREE
LAS VEGAS NY 89101-2408

Electronically Filed
11/05/2015 07:19:44 PM

DISTRICT COURT i b i

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA CLERK OF THE COURT
LR E S
THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO: C-14-295158-1
PLAINTIFF,
DEPARTMENT 23
VS.
MELVYN SPROWSON, JR.
DEFENDANT.

Receipt of Copy of Protected Information and Records from Vena M. Davis,
Mojave Adult, Child & Family Services

Received from Carmen Alper, Judicial Executive Assistant to Honorable
Stefany A. Miley, District Court Judge, Department XXII!, a true and correct copy

of the following documents: Court Exhibit #1, Filed Under Seal — protected

information being held by Vena M. Davis, Mojave Adult, Child & Family Services,
6375 W, Charleston Blvd., #100, Las Vegas, NV 89146, consisting of any and all
mental health and/or medical records for patient: Jaysenia Torres, DOB:
_ including, but not limited to any/all intake paperwork, therapy notes,

diagnosis, prescription(s), methods of treatment and physical examinations given or
provided on or about August 2013 to the present.

The parties are not to disclose and/or disseminate the contents of the records
to anyone as these documents wﬂl remain under seal.

Receipt acknowledged by: M

] acqgle Bluth, Esq./District Attorney’s Office

Dated:
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

MELVYN P. SPROWSON, JR., Supreme Court No. 68797
Appellant, District Court Case No. C295158
VS.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent. Fl LED
CLERK’S CERTIFICATE DEC 02 2015
c Kéé%é‘"u‘ﬁf

STATE OF NEVADA, ss.

I, Tracie Lindeman, the duly appointed and qualified Clerk of the Supreme Court of the
State of Nevada, do hereby certify that the following is a full, true and correct copy of
the Judgment in this matter.

JUDGMENT

The court being fully advised in the premises and the law, it is now ordered, adjudged
and decreed, as follows:

“ORDER this appeal DISMISSED.”

Judgment, as quoted above, entered this 3" day of November, 2015.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have subscribed
my name and affixed the seal of the Supreme
Court at my Office in Carson City, Nevada this
November 30, 2015.

Tracie Lindeman, Supreme Court Clerk

By: Sally Williams
Deputy Clerk

C-14-2956158~-1
CcCJD
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgn

4506176
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

MELVYN P. SPROWSON, JR., No. 68797
Appellant,
vs.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent. FB L E ﬁ
NOV 0 3 2015
BY DéPUTY CLERK
ORDER DISMISSING APPEAL

This is an appeal from a district court order denying a pretrial
motion to suppress evidence. Eighth Judicial District Co.urt, Clark
County; Stefany Miley, Judge.

Our initial review of this appeal revealed a jurisdictional
defect. Specifically, it appeared that no statute or court rule allows a
defendant to appeal from an order denying a pretrial motion to suppress
evidence. See Castillo v. State, 106 Nev. 349, 352, 792 P.2d 1135, 1135
(1990); NRS 177.015(2). Accordingly, on September 24, 2015, we ordered
appellant’s counsel to show cause why this appeal should not be dismissed

for lack of jurisdiction.

1S53340




To date, appellant’s counsel has not responded to the order to
show cause. Nevertheless, having reviewed the documents filed with the
notice of appeal, we conclude that we lack jurisdiction to consider this
appeal, and we

ORDER this appeal DISMISSED.!

Parraguirre

Dfﬁ'é 3 Ches g a3

Y
[ 4

Douglas Cherry

cc:  Hon. Stefany Miley, District Judge
Law Office of John J. Momot
Melvyn P. Sprowson, Jr.
Attorney General/Carson City
Clark County District Attorney
Eighth District Court Clerk

1We deny as moot the motion to withdraw- a&‘counsel of record ﬁled
on September 23, 2015. - = R Ts

Supreme COURT R I T -
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NEvaDA . ~
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Deputy
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

MELVYN P. SPROWSON, JR., Supreme Court No. 68797
Appellant, District Court Case No. C295158
VS.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent.

REMITTITUR

TO: Steven D. Grierson, Eighth District Court Clerk

Pursuant to the rules of this court, enclosed are the following:

Certified copy of Judgment and Opinion/Order.
Receipt for Remittitur.

DATE: November 30, 2015
Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of Court

By: Sally Williams
Deputy Clerk

cc (without enclosures):
Hon. Stefany Miley, District Judge
Melvyn P. Sprowson, Jr.
Attorney General/Carson City
Clark County District Attorney
Law Office of John J. Momot

RECEIPT FOR REMITTITUR

Received of Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada, the
REMITTITUR issued in the above-entitled cause, on DEC 0 7 2015

HEATHER UNGERMANN
Deputy District Court Clerk

RECEIVED
DEC 02 2015

CLERK OF THE GOURT 1 15-36317
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Electronically Filed
12/11/2015 03:51:05 PM
1 DISTRICT COURT % )Sféeﬂm
2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA CLERK OF THE COURT
3
ek
4
THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO: C-14-295158-1
3 PLAINTIFF,
DEPARTMENT 23
6 Vs.
7
MELVYN SPROWSON, JR.
8 DEFENDANT.
9
10 RECEIPT OF COPY OF DOCUMENTS PERTAINING TO PROTECTED
INFORMATION AND RECORDS FROM WELLS FARGO BANK
11
12 Received from Carmen Alper, Judicial Executive Assistant to Honorable
13 Stefany A. Miley, District Court Judge, Department XXIII, a true and correct copy
14 of the following documents: Court Exhibit 1, Filed Under Seal - protected
15
information and records from Wells Fargo Bank.
16
17 The parties are not to disclose and/or disseminate the contents of the records
18 || to anyone,as these documents will remain under seal.
19 Receipt acknowledged by: M
20 Michael R. Yohai, Esq. on behalf of
Melvyn Sprowson, Jr.
29 Dated: December 10, 2015
23
24
25
26
27
28
STEFANY A, MILEY
DISTRICT JUDGE
DEPARTMENT TWENTY THREE
LAS VEGAS NV 891012408 756

I R A ]




DISTRICT COURT Electronically Filea
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 12/11/2015 03:50:31 PM

¢ e m t.%m-

THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO: C-14-295 1500 0 oo0nt
PLAINTIFF,

DEPARTMENT 23
V8.

MELVYN SPROWSON, JR.
DEFENDANT.

N G0 3 SN B W N

RECEIPT OF COPY OF DOCUMENTS PERTAINING TO PROTECTED

10 INFORMATION AND RECORDS FROM WELLS FARGO BANK

11

12 Received from Carmen Alper, Judicial Executive Assistant to Honorable
13 Stefany A. Miley, District Court Judge, Department XXIII, a true and correct copy
14 of the following documents: Court Exhibit 1, Filed Under Seal — protected

:2 information and records from Wells Fargo Bank.

17 The parties are not to disclose and/or disseminate the contents of the records
18 || to anyone, as these documents will remain under seal. ~

19 Receipt acknowledged by: ,/ M

20 Jacquéline Bluth, Esq.

21 Dated: December 10, 2015
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26

27

28

STEFANY A. MILEY
DISTRICT JUDGE

DEPARTMENT TWENTY THREE
LAS VEGAS NV 89101-2408 757
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APPLICATION AND AFFIDAVIT FOR SEARCH WARRANT C {—\ (U

Dec 10 3250y y3 eyﬁw’j

JU(.“'. ‘“__\_'l',']'
STATE OF NEVADA ) LAS VEGA: NEVADA
) ss: Melvyn Perry Sprowson gr T —— T
COUNTY OF CLARK ) Tew

Detective JEFF SCHELL, P# 295, being first duly sworn, deposes and states that he is the
affiant herein, and that he is a Police Officer with the Clark County Schoot District Police
Department, currently assigned to the Investigation Bureau, having been employed by the
Department for 11 years.

There is probable cause to believe that certam property hereinafter described will be found at
the following described premises, to-wit:

Melvyn Sprowson Jr.'s residence located at 4915 Russell Road, Apartment #143, Las Vegas
Nevada 89120. Further described as; multifamily apartment complex, light brown color with
dark brown and gray trim, commonly known as Mesa Ridge Village. The number 143 is posted
next to the door at about eye level. The front door faces in an eastward direction and is
accessible from the ground floor.

The property referred to and sought to be seized consists of the following:

1. Any and all computers or devices capable of accessing the internet or sending and
receiving messages or downloading and storing data.

2. Any and all female clothing and or personal hygiene products.

3. And articles of personal property which would tend to establish the identity of persons in
control of said premises, which items of property would consist in part of and include, but
not limited to papers, documents and effects which tend to show possession, dominion
and control over said premises, including but not limited to keys, canceled mail
envelopes, rental agreements and receipts, utility and telephone bills, prescription
bottles, vehicle registration, vehicle repairs and gas receipts. Items which tend to show
evidence of motive and/or the identity of the perpetrator such as photographs and
undeveloped film, insurance policies and letters, address and telephone records, diaries,
governmental notices, whether such items are written, typed or stored on computer disc.
Objects which bear a person's name, phone number or address.

"LYMPD 411 (Rov. 1/11) WORD 2067 : : 791
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4. The property hereinbefore described constitutes evidence which tends to demonstrate
that the criminal offense of 200.310 - 1st Degree Kidnap has been commitied.

In support of your affiant's assertion to constitute the existence of probable cause, the following
facts are offered:

During the month of October 2013, Officer Gary Abbott # 199 was contacted by Kathryn Smith,
mother of 16 year old Jaysenia D. Torres. Smith requested help from Officer Abbott because
Torres had run away from home. She informed Officer Abbott she had filed a runaway report
with the Henderson Police Department (HPD) on August 30, 2013 HPD event # 13-13994.

Officer Abbott contacted HPD who informed Abbott that Torres was communicating with an
individual named Melvyn Perry Sprowson Jr. based on emails and Craigslist.com information
Smith (Torres’ mother) provided HPD.

Officer Abbott conducted a records check of Sprowson and learned Sprowson was a
kindergarten teacher at Wengert Elementary School, Las Vegas, Nevada. Officer Abbott and
Det. Platt met with Sprowson at Wengert Elementary on October 31, 2013. Sprowson agreed to
speak them and during their conversation Sprowson admitted to knowing 16 year old Torres via
text messages, craiglist.com and phone calls. Sprowson stated he never met Torres in person
and only had a messaging relationship. Sprowson stated he chats with several people at one
time and the messages sometimes runs together. Sprowson also advised that he has no
knowledge of Torres whereabouts, but did admit to wiring Torres $150.00 one time in the past.

On November 1, 2013, Officer Abbott went to Melvyn Sprowson’s apartment located at 4915 E.
Russell Road, Las Vegas, Nevada 89120 for a knock and talk. Abbott knocked on the door and
Torres answered the door. Officer Abbott recognized the missing juvenile as Torres. Officer
Abbott then contacted Sergeant Mitch Maciszak # 308 and informed him the runaway juvenile
was at Sprowson'’s residence. ;

Sgt. Maciszak and | went to Sprowson’s residence and met with Torres. We conducted an
audio recorded interview with Torres where she told us she ran away from home because she
did not like her mom’s attitude. Torres told us she began looking for roommates on
Craigslist.com and came across an advertisement posted by Sprowson. Torres toild us she
began exchanging text messages with Sprowson and a relationship started. Torres told us on
August 28, 2013, she was fed up with living with her mom and text messaged Sprowson telling -
him she did not want to stay at her mom's house. Sprowson then picked her up from her house
and without the consent of Torres’ parents took Torres to his apartment. Torres stated she had
been living with Sprowson ever since. Torres said she was not attending schoo! because she
knew if she went to school she would be taken back home because she was listed as a
runaway. Torres stated she and Sprowson had talked about her going back to school when she
was 18 years of age. Torres stated they also discussed the idea of her becoming emancipated.
Torres further stated that their relationship had developed into a dating relationship and they
both told each other “| love you.” Torres also told us they both shared a bedroom and slept in
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the same bed. Torres also told us she and Sprowson were the only people living in the
apartment. :

Det. Matt Caldwell # 368 and Det. David Platt # 217 went to Wengert Elementary School to see
if Sprowson showed up for work. The school principal, Ms. Mustafa, advised Sprowson was at
work. Det. Platt asked to have Sprowson brought to the front office so he could speak with him,
_Det. Piatt told me Sprowson was very evasive stating that he was not going to answer any
questions and he had already answered them the day before. Sprowson did advise he had
never had contact with Torres’ famiiy or friends. The interview was audio recorded.

On December 5, 2013, | went back to the Mesa Ridge Village apartments located at 4915

Russell Road and spoke with an employee in the rental office. The employee told me that

Sprowson was still a resident and his rent was current. The employee also told me they went

into Sprowson's apartment to remove trash to prevent damage to the property and obnoxious
odors.

Sprowson was arrested for Kidnapping, Contributing to the delinquency of a minor, Child abuse
and Obstructing. Sprowson was transported to the Clark County Detention Center by Det. Platt
where he was booked accordingly. Due to the fact Torres told us their relationship began
through text' messaging Sprowson's black iPhone bearing serial # 88123FJSA4T was booked
into CCSDPD evidence.

WHEREFORE, Affiant requests that a Search Warrant be issued directing a. search fdr and
seizure of the aforementioned items at the location set forth herein.

o

AFFANT JEFF SCHELL

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this  6th day of December , 2013,

Junet

Reyigwed by: CERTIFIED COPY oateis
f /40 cument to which s ceftificaie
2. i r’r at:-;‘;ze?is a full, true and correct copy of the

i 4 in Justice Court
. i fla and of record in Justice
De{ o Aﬂomey oc'mgu;a:;g;\ar; Townstip, in and for the County

f;
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SEARCH WARRANT
NRS 179.045

Dec 10 3 25 PH *j3

L:bq”‘ LUOURT

SYECLS Nty

STATE OF NEVADA ) py ___ 7 NEVADA
) SS. Melvyn Perry Sprowson Jr. GERLTY

COUNTY OF CLARK )

The State of Nevada, to any Peace Officer in the County of Clark. Proof having been
made before me by Det. Jeff Schell, P#295, by Affidavit, incorporated by reference, that there is
probable cause to believe that certain evidence, to wit:

1. Any and aII' computers or devices capable of accessing the internet or sending-and’
receiving messages or downloading and storing data.

2. And articles of personal property which would tend to establish the identity of persons in
control of said premises, which items of property would consist in part of and include, but
not limited to papers, documents and effects which tend to show possession, dominion
and control over said premises, including but not limited to keys, canceled mail
envelopes, rental agreements and receipts, utility and telephone bills, prescription
bottles, vehicle registration, vehicle repairs and gas receipts. Items which tend to show
evidence of motive and/or the identity of the perpetrator such as photographs and
undeveloped film, insurance policies and letters, address and telephone records, diaries,
governmental notices, whether such items are written, typed or stored on computer disc.
Objects which bear a person’s name, phone number or address.

3. Any and all female clothing and or personal hygiene products.

The property hereinbefore described constitutes evidence which tends to demonstrate that the
criminal offense of 200.310 - 1st Degree Kidnap has been committed.

is presently located at: (1)
Melvyn Sprowson Jr.’s residence located at 4915 Russell Road, Apartment #143, Las Vegas
Nevada 89120.

Page 1 of 2

CCSDPD DR# 1311-05723
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As I am satisfied that there is probable cause to believe that said evidence is located as set
forth above and based upon the Affidavit of Det. Jeff Schell # 295 there are sufficient grounds
for the issuance of this Search Warrant. You are hereby commanded to search said premises for

_said property, serving this warrant (between the hours of 7:00am and 7:00 pm) and if the
property is there to seize it and leave a written inventory and make a return before me within 10
days.

+h Q § |
Endorsed this é day of ¢ A ,20 /3

- 24

JUDGE

Page 1 of 2

CCSDPD DR# 1311-05723

CERTIFIED COPY )
The document to which ihis cedificate s
attached is a full, true and correct COpY of the
original on file and of record in Justice Court
of Las Vegas Vguughip, in and for the County
i)
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CLARK COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICE Dmﬁ T Page _ of
SEARCH & SEIZURE RETU

(Must be made within t0-days of issuance of warrant) DR# {3 |- asTA>

Dec 10 3 26 Pl 13

The search and seizure warrant authorizing a search and seizure at the folloyying d?sc;rlbed, location(s):
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A copy of this inventory was left with: (Name of person or place of search)

DA QL eon\Dee
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\ Q V- 45wy gy -Jut,_m'-;s-‘) uv;,fﬁﬂd\) ot Bl SiET st Cu;mé_
-\ v(’\b(l—/ﬁnm# TALen J..Ir;cuu:.. L,(J\/-.-. CoeoTs D) ¢ Cang SN L IR AAY
VM ool e aTet<p\ Arerss LLESep c_om,mfe,& 5/ ) enFN R TI<r (e -
BeTED | 5 C oo uivh Qoo ISR PonEl . fonld
A, Qg o uq(-rf\g_u“) SN EE (o Coto SRS oepeln i) 1Y Floow ST, CLASEY.
L v K et fL\LL.O» YAaelt ‘S-’k*-f“ Locsse ™S 157 Sire kuci-lf:.rd T (A RN
\ LEASEL fRLEr uooou e Adrld winete To TMEL 15 Cloel kirals ¢ cinNFE G
VLB el S el AApl " Ve Closd— Mitalien) courTe e
L €CO™ Nty €08V Wil flete 8 oF Ml G @b Geordy VS el WaTelgns courig
G oot Lestdoa . PLW[Mb Mexl (PDY, Bob vt deyde cup_a, A ComBS CONayg
nNANG Wen@ 1goed, Wowd thitod CFJND-LﬁﬁwF\. \ Lﬁ.ﬁﬂ/;p_;; AL b oTe
AN L f)kdﬁ)\i‘ HAaV e ‘\’\(,3 Heitistma, L.P/ch"/r\) Gf,VLwJ'} THL Zopds
ow\l— oS Blodk Revd, éﬁ‘@-”*\«h wtukwﬂf\r_ Hawt séony]
L U0 W aaDED svsEST enxﬁ—‘i l—uc«-a!gu@ﬂ—‘y Loeedens |57, \’—'Lc«w iVl ﬂe&rMJ‘
‘5\1{’/ )d S, :
\ T O conpusicl A/J\HS/J IL_LAL_Z.-J;;_'_{LQD&L-'& Q'tﬁ'.) LOCATED  1n) 2 Vb Feoa_
ﬂw\mw\l A<EACE. -

Inventory completed by: (Include officers, affiant and person from whom property is taken, if present)
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CLARK COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICE D ;}FIYI '[ Page

SEARCH & SEIZURE RETU

(Must be made within 10-days of issuance of warrant) DR# !-5\ \ “CS 77\3

Dec 10 3 26 P13

The search and seizure warrant authorizing a search and seizure at the followmgﬂl’%scnbed lojcfa%mn(s)
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was executed on: \vE.CeMed _ b, 2417

A copy of this inventory was left with: (Name of person or place of search)
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The following is an inventory of property taken pursuant to the warrant:
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Dec 10 3 26 PH '3

STATE OF NEVADA )

) ss:  SPROWSON, Melvyn Perry Jr. JUSTICE CouRry
COUNTY OF CLARK ) . BY LAS VECGAS REvADA

pERLTY

Detective Jeff Schell, being first duly sworn deposes and stated that he is the affiant herein and is a
Detective with the Clark County School District Police Department (herein after referred to as
CCSDPD). Your affiant has been in law enforcement for 11 years and is currently assigned to
Investigation. Probable cause exists to believe that the items listed below will be found at the following
premises, to-wit:

Digital Storage Devices, impounded under Clark County School District Police Department DR# 1311-
05723, currently located in the CCSDPD Evidence Vault, 4260 Eucalyptus Las Vegas NV 89121 ,
specifically: ' . ‘

Black in color Apple iPhone cell with serial # 88123FJSAJT.
The property referred to and sought to be seized consists of the following;

1.Digitally stored records, information and data, which may constitute evidence of 200.310 - 1st Degree
Kidnap, 200.508 - Child Endangerment and 201.110 - Contributing to Delinquency of a juvenile,
involvement in the planning or commission of the crime(s), between the dates of July 1, 2013 and
November 1, 2013.

2.Digitally stored records, information and data which would tend to establish the identity of persons
who were in sole or joint control of the aforementioned di gital storage devices during the period of time
between July 1, 2013 and November 1, 2013.

Definitions:

Electronic Storage Device - A device which accepts an incoming stream of data and stores that data by
using an electronic, optical, magnetic, mechanical, or other mechanism. This includes computers, hard
disk drives, cell phones, portable audio devices, thumb drives, magnetic stripe-scanners and reencoders,
memory cards and any other device meeting the definition. The persistence of that data storage may or
may not be dependent on a continuous supply of electricity. '

Digital Storage Media - A device or collection of devices upon which data is stored by an electronic
storage device. This includes CD's, DVD's, floppy disks and any other device meeting the definition.
Persistence of storage may or may not be dependent on a continuous supply of electricity.

Digital Storage Device - A device that meets the definition of an electronic storage device, digital
storage media, or a combination of both. . : .
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APPLICATION AND AFFIDAVIT
FOR SEARCH WARRANT

Digitally Stored Records, Information and Data - Digitally stored records, information and data may be

" found on a digital storage device in the form of files, operating system metadata, residual fragments of
data no longer tracked by the file system, data within Random Access Memory (RAM) or Read Only
Memory (ROM), data within a file or area of disk designated as a backing store, or data within a file or
area of disk intended to represent a complete or partial snapshot of system memory.

In suppert of your affiant's assertion to constitute the existence of probable cause, the following
facts are offered:

During the month of October 2013, Officer Gary Abbott # 199 was contacted by Kathryn Smith, mother
of 16 year old Jaysenia D. Torres. Smith requested help from Officer Abbott because Torres had run
away from home. She informed Officer Abbott she had filed a runaway report with the Henderson
Police Department (HPD) on August 30, 2013 HPD event # 13-13994.

Officer Abbott contacted HPD who informed Abbott that Torres was communicating with an individual
named Melvyn Perry Sprowson Jr. based on emails and Craigslist.com information Smith (Torres’
mother) provided HPD.

Officer Abbott conducted a records check of Sprowson and learned Sprowson was a kindergarten
teacher at Wengert Elementary School, Las Vegas, Nevada. Officer Abbott and Det. Platt met with
Sprowson at Wengert Elementary on October 31, 2013. Sprowson agreed to speak them and during
their conversation Sprowson admitted to knowing 16 year old Torres via text messages, craiglist.com
and phone calls. Sprowson stated he never met Torres in person and only had a messaging relationship.
Sprowson stated he chats with several people at one time and the messages sometimes runs together.
Sprowson also advised that he has no knowledge of Torres whereabouts, but did admit to wiring Torres
$150.00 one time in the past.

On November 1, 2013, Officer Abbott went to Melvyn Sprowson’s apartment located at 4915 E. Russell
Road, Las Vegas, Nevada 89120 for a knock and talk. Abbott knocked on the door and Totres answered
the door. Officer Abbott recognized the missing juvenile as Torres. Officer Abbott then contacted
Sergeant Mitch Maciszak # 308 and informed him the runaway juvenile was at Sprowson’s residence.

Sgt. Maciszak and I went to Sprowson’s residence and met with Torres. We conducted an audio
recorded interview with Torres where she told us she ran away from home because she did not like her
mom’s attitude. Torres told us she began looking for roommates on Craigslist.com and came across an
advertisement posted by Sprowson. Torres told us she began exchanging text messages with Sprowson
and a relationship started. Torres told us on August 29, 2013, she was fed up with living with her mom
and text messaged Sprowson telling him she did not want to stay at her mom’s house. Sprowson then
picked her up from her house and without the consent of Torres’ parents took Torres to his apartment.
Torres stated she had been living with Sprowson ever since. Torres said she was not attending school
because she knew if she went to school she would be taken back home because she was listed as a
runaway. Torres stated she and Sprowson had talked about her going back to school when she was 18
years of age. Torres stated they also discussed the idea of her becoming emancipated. Torres further
stated that their relationship had developed into a dating relationship and they both told each other “I
love you.” Torres also told us they both slept in the same bed.
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Det. Matt Caldwell # 368 and Det. David Platt # 217 went to Wengert Elementary School to see if
Sprowson showed up for work. The school principal, Ms. Mustafa, advised Sprowson was at work.

Det. Platt asked to have Sprowson brought to the front office so he could speak with him. Det. Platt told
me Sprowson was very evasive stating that he was not going to answer any questions and he had already
answered them the day before. Sprowson did advise he had never had contact with Torres’ family or
friends. The interview was audio recorded.

Sprowson was arrested for Kidnapping, Contributing to the delinquency of a minor, Child abuse and
Obstructing. Sprowson was transported to the Clark County Detention Center by Det. Platt where he
was booked accordingly. Due to the fact Torres told us their relationship began through text messaging
Sprowson’s black iPhone bearing serial # 88123FJSA4T was booked into CCSDPD evidence.

Authority to Duplicate Electronic Media

It is further requested that a forensic technician, sworn or non sworn, be granted authorization to
examine; make duplicate images/copies of the digital content of the above mentioned digital storage
device(s) and to determine if evidence of the offenses enumerated above are contained therein.

The master copy will be retained in evidence storage for later discovery and tral purposes.

Authority to Detect and Circumvent Passwords, Encryption, and
Other Investigational Hindrances

Parties engaged in illegal activity often attempt to hide or restrict access to the digitally stored evidence
of their malfeasance through the use of passwords, encryption, or other methods of data obfuscation.
They may also utilize hardware security devices to restrict access to the contents of a digital storage
device.

It is therefore requested that a forensic technician be granted authorization to identify, circumvent,
defeat, or bypass any password, encryption, security device or other mechanism that serves to impede or
hinder the execution of this warrant.

Request for Off-Site Search Authorization

For the following reasons, the execution of this warrant may take a great deal of time and require a
secure facility, special equipment, and software:

a) It is unknown what operating system is running the computer(s) that is subject of this warrant and,
therefore, it will take time to determine how the operating system permits access to data.

b) The amount of data that may be stored in the hard drives and removable storage devices is enormous,
and the number or size of the hard drives and removable storage devices that will have to be searched

pursuant to this warrant is not known.

¢) The data to be seized may be located anywhere on the hard drives and removable storage devices,
including hidden files, program files, and "deleted" files that have not been overwritten.
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FOR SEARCH WARRANT

d) The data may be encrypted, or inaccessible without a password, and may be protected by self-destruct
programming, all of which take time to bypass.

¢) Because data stored on a computer can be destroyed or altered rather easily, either intentionally or
accidentally, the search must be' conducted carefully and in a secure environment.

f) To prevent alteration of data and insure the integrity of the search, clones (mastér copies) of all data
storage devices will be made. The clones {master copies) will then be searched and this process will take
time and special equipment.

For this reason, your affiant prays for the authorization to seize and examine the aforementioned items.
The property hereinbefore described constitutes evidence which tends to demonstrate that the criminal
offense(s) of 200.310 - 1st Degree Kidnap, 200.508 - Child Endangerment and 201.110 - Contributing to

Delinguency of a juvenile have been committed.

WHEREFORE, Affiant requests that a Search Warrant be issued directing a search for and seizure of the
aforementioned items at the location set forth herein.

" tectlveJeff Schell # 295
Subscribed and sworn to before me this Q day of { £ Ceen EJ_@A_ , 2013,

_pbomesin

Judg/e [

Reviewed by:

&

Iyuty District Attorney

CERTIFIED COPY
The document to which this certificate is
attached is a full, true end corect copy of the
original on fite and of record in Justice Court
of Las Vegas Township, in and for the County
of C 3 at f Ngvada ©
‘.‘_
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CCSD PD DR #1311-05723 SwW201s__ . b e

SEARCH WARRANT F' L E D
NRS 179.045

Dec 10 3 25 Py 43

" STATE OF NEVADA ) WSTiAr
) SS: Sprowson, Melvyn Perry Jr. LAS VEJ-GUAL:" 0 Fh RY
COUNTY OF CLARK ) BY ____ »...<.,,\__’__1 L-.’VA JA

 The State of Nevada, to any Peace Officer in the County of Clark. Proof having been
made before me by Det. Jeff Schell, P#295, by Affidavit, incorporated by reference, that there is
probable cause to believe that certain evidence, to wit:

Black in color Apple iPhone cell with serial # 88123FJSA4T.

Digitally stored records, information and data, which may constitute evidence of 200.310
- 1st Degree Kidnap, 200.508 - Child Endangerment and 201.110 - Contributing to
Delinquency of a juvenile, involvement in the planning or commission of the crime(s),
between the dates of July 1, 2013 and November 1, 2013.

Digitally stored records, information and data which would tend to establish the identity
of persons who were in sole or joint control of the aforementioned digital storage devices
during the period of time between July 1, 2013 and November 1, 2013 and is presently
located at: '

The Clark County School District Police Department Evidence Vault, located at 4260
Eucalyptus Las Vegas NV 89121

As I am satisfied that there is probable cause to believe that said evidence is located as set
forth above and based upon the Affidavit of Det. Jeff Schell # 295 there are sufficient grounds
for the issuance of this Search Warrant. You are hereby commanded to search said
premises/vehicle for said property, serving this warrant (between the hours of 7:00am and 7:00
pm) and if the property is there to seize it and leave a written inventory and make a return before
me within 10 days.

A
Endorsed this & day of el o,

CERTIFIED COPY " )
The document to which this certificsta i3

, ' attached is a full, frue and cotrect copy of the
origina on file sid of record in Jusiice g:oun
C‘)@ ~ of Las Vegas Tpwsaghin, in and for ine Courty

f Nevadd

JUDGE

Pagelof1
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CLARK COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICE DEPA Page
'SEARCH & SEIZURE RETUR»W CEC

{Must be made within 10-days of issuance of warrant) DR# 13{]| -0 ‘5 7,1:)

Dec 10 3 25 ¢ 13

The search and seizure warrant authorizing a search and seizure at the following [lqc@bed locatmn(s)
: LAS"LWA\ b 'MT“
DS A YOl -, 12E e HI_‘.L) (__._,_.-( L.V S Ve
< P\orod__ 2 = P — DL, = )7 £ - g ‘Fp & h)—‘
e AT C_.‘ (> £ C o A o m
NV ‘?ﬁt Al Spec iCiceuns; fod |y cowf’ LppLE (PHoriE s~ ixH]
SELIPL T FHI2BFSSAYT,

was executed on: | - &~ |

A copy of this mventory was left with: (Name of person or place of search)
A

The following is an inventory of property taken pursuaant to the warrant;

ez N Foeidsics Re poeX.

Inventory completed by: (Include officers, affiant and person froin whom property is taken, if present)

L # o
Aey 5 S Mecid 275 CERTIFIED G? o cortificate 1S
OFFICER / AFFIANT OFFICER e document © Wit d o moch copy o1 ¥ ®
fulh, e 3 Justiez Cou
fracned 8 &M ¢ cncore n Jus unty
) Qn fite ar Wi © "\d for the OO
ortg‘a Townstt n\ﬂ? 43

OFFICER - OWNER

SFD-F431 (Rev. 06-12)
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PROPERTY ROOM ONLY | f:K(/\lIO(‘{ c Q)

PROPERTY #

CLARK COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICE DEPARTMENT
PROPERTY REPORT

. Paﬂe of
INCIDENT:;

KM, ppira . “1311-0574%

GENERAL INFORMATION

5 i

ERE AR
rt! \Officer’s Si nature.
’&Bﬁoﬁl‘?’gﬁﬂa&ﬁ gg; LR
Last Name i
SCRNISON S@ - M AELNY N Male
Street Address City State Zip Charge(s)
- - “ S e
D b, Russeli, €eanN Ly aiV SHAL  KIDANAPI g bon
Suspect# | Last Name First M DOB: 0O Aduit 0O duvenite
O Male C] Female
Street Address City State Zip Charge(s)
Suspect# | Last Name First %] 00B: 0O Adui 1 Juvenie
) : [ male (O Femate
Street Address City State Zip Charge(s)

Last NaTe First Name
X Officer O Finder o L.f.... ' Y AWl
Street Address City State Zip Home Phone: Business Phone:
Owmer Notified: Notified By: Relgased {0 Owner? Completa chain of custody -
Selie i '

Yes [] No for items released to owner

PROPERTY LIST

f#3.] #df ltems Make / Brand f Model Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial # / Misc.
:';;i.i'.:;' f
Description of Contents: Location of Recovery: <
i e o 1 - . N 3 W i
Prus eF \WoMant3S SunGLASSES HUE E L Aussau. . APTT 1YY
_Pkg. # | #of tems Make / Brand I Model Caliber Size Barel Length Serial # I Misc.
LN I M ONTEGD Brve i
Description of Contents: s Location of Recovery:
. - - .57 J - ”
P 2F i m 20 S TBILNSS e b SR 5345fc":' R "
" Pkg #.;] #ofitems Make / Brand / Modal Caliber Size Barrel Length - Seriat # { Misc.
e SIS 7 AN i S
Description of Contents: ! Location of Recovery: i
HE]
“{_,V};N.{,.,jg_ H-.,,L. IL_rw{w ﬁf-‘-s__. o
TPkg!#] #of lems Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barref Length Serial # / Misc.
7
Description of Contents: Location of Recovery: ]
- - i v Piad !
PiEnG wiety Hanl, oot 2% i

Check here if property listing is continued on continyation page. I:;;{

DISTRIBUTION:

WHITE - EVIDENCE CANARY - CITIZEN PINK — RECORDS
SPD - GO375 (Rev. 08-13)
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PROPERTY ROOM ONLY
PROPERTY #

N

Bhibit ¢ @

CLARK COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICE DEPARTMENT

PROPERTY REPORT

CONTINUATION PAGE

PROPERTY LIST

g % - | #of ltems Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Bamel Length Serial # Misc.
s . -
Y O PN
Description of Contents: Location of Recovery:
3]
2 CamMps, L—
~Pkg.#.| #ofltems Make / Brand / Mode! Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial #/ Misc,
bl i N Y R A T
Description of Contents: : Location of Recovery: ..
4 ,, o i Pt
Hoal i i ‘
"Pkg. # T #ofitems Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Length Serigl #/ Misc.
Description of Contents: Location of Recovery: ;
4 . £ 2 s"
["?(:*.h.-'."?b ML OV —
*Pkg. # | #ofltems Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial #/ Misc.
R ! .
v (' f T A
Pescription of Contenls; Location of Recovery: )
! I
Kot i i
Py # | #of ltems Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial # / Misc.
R
Description of Contents: Location of Recovery: ; ;
BN Sy ey Bulps 7 VaTo. ¢ febil ¥
.Pkg. # | #ofltems Make / Brand / Model! Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial # { Misc.
b . N 4'j
& '.51‘.:”-'.7 .
Description of Contents: Location of Recovery: N
i . - i
‘f ¥ r“ ELRWAR 5 | O NI N TR '
wPkg. # 7| #of ltems Make / Brand / Modei Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial # / Misc.
o 2 I R X O3 X DRI v,
Description of Contents: Location of Recovery: .
i . . g . T e e i
&~ ;}.1'.'..'; K2 B e ted T Tel :
Pkg.# | #ofltems Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial # / Misc.
o B Plis womoa o
k: Pl AL, Tew 7 K% AL
Description of Contents: Location of Recovery: ; f
i :! Fa il \;} A R ’
‘Pkg.#.| #ofltems ‘ Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial # / Misc.
LR RV T
{1 . { RN ol Bk N
[')iescription of Contents: Location of Recovery: . }
- 3 o . - #
PV TR D
" Pkg-#| #of ltems Caliber Size Barre! Length Serial # / Misc.
A LAETE
Daescription of Contents: R Location of Recavery:
P < e +:
Bl Auge iy 1o, el Saaeet gile Y _
" Pkg.# | #of ltems Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial #/ Misc.
SN RN R LT
Description of Contents: Location of Recovery: .
FRYC, st foat® L0 i dies
.'Pkg.#°| #of lems Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Langth Serial # / Misc,
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- e
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5 o, 3
N I il
K e

)
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Description of Contents: e i Y
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_PROPERTY ROOM ONLY

PROPERTY #

C BRI

(3

CLARK COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICE DEPARTMENT
PROPERTY REPORT

INCIDENT: ¢
S}

Last Name ._ Adult Juvenile
L YLD Dot St ML iy . Male Female

Street Address City State Zip Charge(s)

FE4 - J X . i wpra {2 . 5 e Il
it - Yol N ey IV G e B S D Y Y e

Suspect # | Last Name First [X] DOB:' O Aduit O Juveniie
[0 male ] Female

Street Address City State Zip Charge(s)
Suspect # | Last Name First Ml DOB: O Aduit 0 Juvenite
1 Mmale [0 Femate

Street Address City State Zip Charge(s)

Recovered By:
JE Officer

O oOwner
[ Finder

Last Name

B lonid

First Name

i T

Street Address City State Zip Home Phone: Business Phone:
Owner Notified: Notified By: i Date Notified: ‘Maui?d Notified: Released to Owner? Complete chatn of custody
LV aoy el O Yes ETiNo for ltems released to owner
OPERTY LIST
Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Length ﬁ Sa?al #/ Misc,
¥ ; Py i
He 2t ol T
' N Location of Recove -
- o Yy & -,«.uuf LAY
LA@Tod  Cordid T & AT M, msf %7 20
§iPKg. #5| #ofltems " Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Length ‘Senal #/ Misc.
NELN %
G2y | beeh | B9y kcrw®zpn
Descriplion of Contents: Location of Recovery: o
AauAnie o R PR S T
{ ATV gl D D67 Gl
_Phg'#7| #ofltems i Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial #/ Misc.
Y
Description of Contents: Location of Recavery. .
4
Y Cernzas ;
Pkg.# ! #of ltems Make / Brand / Model Caliber Size Barrel Length Serial # / Misc.
i
Descnpuon of Contents: Lacation of Recovery:
. - : !
P R R - O R S, TR, | A Hleg . 1 Ccsn ). h i

SPD - GOI7S5 (Rev. 08-13)

DISTRIBUTION: ~

Check here if property listing is continued on continuation page. [J

WHITE — EVIDENCE CANARY — CITIZEN PINK — RECORDS
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Exlilg (-+ D
Page of CLARK COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICE DEPARTMENT DR# i3 ]- 057)\5

STATEMENT REPORT
FOR OFFICIAL POLICE USE ONLY

CHECKONE: [JVICTIM 53 WITNESS (O SUSPECT ¢ checked, Warning & Waiver below must be compisted.)
Loz;uon of Incident: {Number and Street) City ' State Zip Code

V% . lsseic. EN . iv o am/ | BW2D

Name {Last / First / Middie)

Qm N \,(Lb\{hnm loan

Date nf Ri-- Sodar Securiss ¥ Sex Ht. Wi, Haj Eyes Business / School Narne
U Y 154 iaglfd by
I-Resmence Address (Number & Strest) . State er Code Aes. Ph {
TETV WAV R R TR R ‘mﬂmn Mv %CJD,L’ Bus. Phone Ext.
Business / Schoel Address Number & iﬁe Clty State Zip Code Occupation; D cCsh Employee
[] Student
WARNING: BEFORE YOU ARE ASKED ANY QUESTIONS, YOU MUST UNDERSTAND YOUR RIGHTS
lam \ of the Ciark County School District Police Department and inform you that:

1. You have the right to remain silant. — 8 Anything you say can and will be used against you in Juvenile Court,

Anything you say can and will be used against you in a court of law. a felony} you may ba certified as

You have the right to speak to any atiorney and have himmer an adult and tried in Adult Criminal Court statement you make
resent with you while you are being questioned. can and will be used against you in Adult Court. ™,

6 years or older and 8

| understand each of these rights as explalned to me.

. . i rights in mind, | wish to mak
(FOR JUVENILES, ALSO USE THE FOLLOWING JUVENILE MIRANDA PLUS) 2 Having thess rights In mind, | wish to make a statement tyou now

5. You have the right to have your paren! or guardian present during

questioning.

Signature

Last wuk | SEORKE W iy daioiier gamol Qb o S
vy0s gind She Neld mo ol ¢ u,m Namg  Dickurel oF
2{ Nl . gna ~“nid e Sne 100S | QM ‘oot

Location of Statement {Number & Stata)

JCIW Siate Zip Code Morith Day Year Time (24hr}
foex A Heaats N/ ‘5’7074' I2 ¢ /3 /525

ad thls statement cg s:stlng of page(s), and | affirm to the truth and accuracy of the facts contained herein. | understand that
e king false st' emem\may subject me to appropriate criminal action as provided byfaw.

4, - A5 e &‘1
hool Police Officer Only)

810 ‘\\\m

WITNESS:
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151
1 the witness. She doesn't like the answer. 1 A. My cell phone, my laptop, my retainer.
2 MS. BLUTH: Because she's completely 2 Q. And that was alt at the home once you left on
3 inconsistent. I have a right to do that, 3 November 1st?
4 THE COURT: Overruled. I'm going to let you 4 A. Yeah.
5§ get to that point. 5 MR. MOMOT: Which home are we talking about?
6 MS. BLUTH: 6 Melvyn's?
7 Q. Part of the plan between the two of you was for 7 MS, BLUTH: T'll specify.
8 vyou not to go to school? 8 Q. Are we tatking about Melvyn's home? The
9 A. It was my plan to not going to school. He wanted 9 defendant's home?
10 me to go to school. 10 A. Yeah.
11 Q. IWhat would have happened if you went to school? 1 Q. So today is it your testimony that you didn't try
12 A. I would have been found. 12 to commit suicide?
13 Q. And so the -- 13 A. Idid, butI didn't. Like I wouldn't have died.
14 A. He wanted me to stay home and go to schooland |14 I know I wouldn't have died. My real goal was to get --
15 wait until I was 18 to go with him. 15 my mom was blocking the stairs and I wanted to get
16 Q. But at some point you didn't stay home; you went 16 around her. The only way to get around her was to jump
17 to his home? 17 off the balcony to get to the first floor. But I tried
18 A. Yeah, because I made him come get me. 18 to kill myself.
19 Q. Okay. And as part of that plan you weren't going 19 Q. Okay. Those statements are completely
20 to go to school because you would get caught, correct? 20 conflicting. So you either tried to kill yourseif or
21 A. Yes. 21 you didn't.
22 Q. The pictures that we've seen on the phone and on 22 A. 1Inthe eyes of the hospital I'm saying that T
23 the computer, how did the police or the District 23 tried to kill myself. But me personally, I know I
24 Attaorney's office end up knowing about those pictures? 24 wouldn't have died. I might have broken my leg at the
25 A. Because -- what do you mean? 25 least -- at the most. At the most I would have broken
150 162
1 Q. The pictures that we've seen today that came from 1 my let.
2 the computer and the phone, how did those come to light? 2 Q. Would you rather die than live without Melvyn?
3 Like how did the police find out that they were there? 3 A. Yes.
4 MR. MOMOT: TI'll object to that. 4 MS. BLUTH: Nothing further.
5 MS. BLUTH: He's challenging the search 5 THE COURT: Anything further, Mr, Momot?
6 warrant, so [ have to lay a foundation. 6 RECROSS-EXAMINATION
7 MR, MOMOT: [ mean, that's got to be with 7 BY MR. MOMOT:
8 the officers that are going to come here to testify. 8 Q. So in other words you still love Melvyn?
9 MS. BLUTH: No, I'm laying a foundation for 9 A. Yes.
10 it 10 Q. This Joshua -- I asked you a question about
11 THE COURT: If she knows. Do you know how 11 3gshua. That's a made up name?
12 the police found out about these photos? 12 A. No, Joshua is a boy that I used as an excuse for
13 THE WITNESS: They had his computer. 13 the ring and stuff. Like when my mom found the ring, I
14 MS. BLUTH: 14 said Joshua gave it to me.
15 Q. Did you -- I'm sorry, Judge. Did you ever tell 15 Q. Isee. Buton August 28th, the day before this,
16 me that there would be photos on the phone and the 16 before you decided to leave and all, August 28th I
17 computer? 17 think, you were having problems with your mom?
18 A. Itold you about the computer after I found out 18 A. Yeah.
19 that they took the computer. 19 Q. You couldn't use the computer or your phone; she
20 Q. But did you tell me there would be photos? 20 took it away from you?
21 A. Yes. 21 A. Yeah, and she took the ring.
22 Q. what type of personal belongings did you have at 22 MR. MOMOT: I have nothing further.
23 the home? 23 THE COURT: I have a couple questions.
24 A. My clothes. I had everything there. 24 Okay?
25 Q. What type of things? 25 THE WITNESS: QOkay.
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249 251
1 A. No. 1 disclosed that she had taken some photographs of herself
2 Q. Butdid you, as part of your search warrant, list 2 in various states of undress. And she was concerned
3 any and all computer devices? 3 about those photographs and we wanted to recover those.
4 A. Yes, 1did. 4 . Q. Okay. And did you get a search warrant for not
5 Q. And let me know if you need to see a copy of your 5 only his laptop or the computers, but alsc the cell
6 report, but what items were seized as part of this 6 phone?
7 initial search warrant of the home on December 6th? 7 A. Yes, we did.
8 A. There was two computers. There was the HP laptop 8 Q. And did you receive information that she had
9 and there was an IBM tower. There was a bunch of female | 9 actually sent those via text message?
10 personal effects that belonged to Jaysenia. 10 A. 1don't recall offhand how they were distributed.
" MR. MOMOT: Objection. That's a conclusion 11 Q. Or let me dlarify. Did you have information that
12 on his part. 12 laysenia and the defendant had been communicating both
13 THE COURT: Sustained. 13 via phone and via computer?
14 MS. BLUTH: 14 A. Yes, from our previous interview.
15 Q. Did you return those -- were any of those items @ Q. And in regards to the pictures, you provided --
16 returned to Jaysenia or her mother? 16 well, let me back up. So once you get the search
17 A. Yes, they were. 17 warrant for the phone and the computer, is there someone
18 Q. Were they identified as Jaysenia's? 18 within your department that is a forensic technician
19 A. Yes. 189 that does those types of things with different items of
20 MR. MOMOT: Objection; hearsay. 20 technology?
21 THE COURT: You took items that later were 21 A. Yes.
22 identified as belonging to Jaysenia and returned to her. 22 Q. And what's that individual's hame?
23 THE WITNESS: Yes, I did. 23 A. His name is Troy Cox.
24 THE COURT: Mr. Momot? 24 Q. And did you give Mr. Cox the cell phone and the
25 MR. MOMOT: My objection was that it was a 25 computer to do the forensic examination that he needed
250 252
1 hearsay statement. He seized items and they were 1 todo?
2 returned to the mother, but -- 2 A. After obtaining the warrant for them, yes.
3 THE COURT: Overruled. Go ahead. 3 Q. And did he do those examinations?
4 MR. MOMOT: [t's still hearsay. 4 A. Hedid,
5 MS. BLUTH: 5 Q. And are you then provided with the items that are
6 Q. So besides the computer, did you take into 6 found?
7 evidence that letter that we saw pictures of? 7 A. Yes. He makes a - he prints out a report and he
8 A. Yes, Idid. provides me with the report.
9 Q. Did you take into evidence the missing persons ) Q. Okay. Now, showing you what's in evidence as
10 fiyer? 10 State's 4 through 15, which are all nude photographs of
11 A. We didn't take the missing persons flyers. We 11 Jaysenia Torres. If you would like to thumb through
12 just photographed it. 12 them really quickly. Excuse me, semi nude. Different
13 Q. I interrupted you. Actually Mr. Momot 13 wvarious pictures of undress.
14 interrupted you. Was there anything else within the 14 Do you recognize those?
15 home? . 15 A. 1do.
16 A. There was a couple more letters, and I believe 16 Q. And are those photos that were obtained from the
17 there was another utility bill that we took. 17 search warrant on the defendant's cell phone as well as
18 Q. When you say letters, letters to whom from whom? 18 his laptop?
19 A. They were letters that said from J to Mel. 19 A. Yeah or computer,
20 Q. At a later point in time did you do what's 20 Q. And you then provided those to my office?
21 sometimes referred to a piggyback warrant for that 21 A. That's correct.
22 computer? @ Q. Okay. Detective Platt testified before you and
23 A. Yes, we did. 23 testified that he had booked the iPhone -- that the
24 Q. And what was the reason for that? 24 iPhone -- excuse me, the defendant's iPhone had been
25 A. We had learned information that Jaysenia had 25 booked into evidence. Are you the individual that
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253 255
1 received the phone out of evidence so that it could go 1 Q. Forinformation contained in your affidavit,
2  to Mr, Cox? 2 A. Without you being more specific, sir, I'm not
3 A. 1 believe the way it happened is we sent an 3 sure.
4 e-mail to our evidence techniclan who then brought it to 4 Q. Here. Page 2. It's your affidavit right, sir?
5 the computer forensics individual, yes. 5 A. Right.
6 Q. And he then provided you with the information? 6 Q. Okay. So you relied on information from
7 A. That's correct. 7 Detective Caldwell and Platt, correct?
8 Q. And the report? 8 A. That would be correct.
9 A. That's correct. 9 Q. Okay. Now, nowhere in this affidavit is it
10 Q. Which was then forwarded to my office? 10 mentioned about a smoke alarm being checked out for the
11 A. That's correct. 11 apartment, is there?
12 MS. BLUTH: Nothing further. 12 A. No, there Is not.
13 THE COURT: Cross? 13 MR. MOMQOT: Okay. No further questions.
14 CROSS-EXAMINATION 14 THE CQURT: Anything further?
15 BY MR. MOMCOT: 15 MS. BLUTH: Nothing further.
16 Q. I reviewed your search warrant, Officer. 1 see 16 THE CQURT: Qkay. Detective Schell, 1
17 that you're -- you didn't find out all the information 17 appreciate your testimony. You're free to leave.
18 vyourself. This information was provided to you by 18 You're excused.
19 various officers? 19 THE WITNESS: Thank you, sir.
20 A. Which Information are we talking about? 20 THE COURT: Anything further?
21 Q. The information contained in your affidavit. 21 MS. BLUTH: The State has no further
22 A. You know, I don't really understand which 22 witnesses, Your Honor.
23 Information you're talking about. 23 THE CQURT: Okay. At this point in time,
24 Q. Did you receive information from Sergeant 24 State, are you resting your case?
25 Macdiszak and you put that into your affidavit? 25 MS. BLUTH: Iam.
254 256
1 A. You know, to answer that accurately I would have | 4 THE COURT: The State has rested their case.
2 to -- you would have to be a little more specific, sir. 2 Mr. Momot?
3 Q. I'mlooking at your affidavit. Did you do an 3 MR. MOMQOT: We're not going to present any
4 affidavit in this case? It's really a simple question, 4 evidence at this time nor is Mr. Sprowson going to
5 Did you do an affidavit in this case? 5 testify on his behalf.
6 A. Yes, Idid. 6 THE COURT: Mr. Sprowson, you understand you
7 Q. And you based that information on the information 7 have a constitutional right to give testimony at this
8 that you received from various officers that you worked 8 proceeding today? Have you discussed that with
9 with? 9 Mr. Momot and your right to testify in this proceeding
10 A. Yes, 10 today?
11 Q. And included in those officers are Sergeant 11 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I have.
12 Maciszak; is that correct? 12 THE COURT: Are you going to be waiving that
13 A. That's correct. 13 right or are you going to be invoking that right?
14 Q. And Officer Abbott, correct? 14 THE DEFENDANT: I'm going to waive it.
18 A. Correct. 15 THE COURT: So you have no intention of
16 Q. And then you compile this information as the case 16 testifying here today?
17 agent and you submit it to a3 magistrate for the 17 THE DEFENDANT: No, I do not.
18 magistrate to sign off on to authorize a search warrant, 18 THE COURT: Mr. Sprowson, have you discussed
19 correct? 19 with Mr. Momot any additional information that you would
20 A. That's correct. 20 like him to provide today?
21 Q. And you did that on December 6th, 2013, right? 21 THE DEFENDANT: No.
22 A. That's correct, 22 THE COURT: Mr. Momot, you want to talk to
23 Q. And you also relied on Detective Caldwell and 23 him about that? Is there any additional information
24 Detective Platt, correct? 24 that -- do you have any additional information that you
25 A. Relied on them for what? 25 want him to provide today, Mr. Sprowson? Do you have

03/24/2014 09:51:30 AM
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Additionally the court in Jllinois v. Gates, 462 U.S. 213, 103 5.Ct. 2317 (1983), made it clear
that a magistrate’s decision regarding probable cause should be given great deference.

“We have repeatedly said that after-the-fact scrutiny by courts of the sufficiency of an
affidavit should not take the form of de novo review. A magistrate’s determination of probable
cause should be paid great deference by reviewing courts”. Id. at 236.

The rationale of the U.S. Supremc Court has been adopted by the Nevada Supreme
Court in numerous cases including Wright v. State, 112 Nev. 391, 396, 916 P.2d 146, 149-150
(1996), in which the Nevada Supreme Court stated:

This court does not conduct a de novo review but merely decides
whether the evidence viewed as a whole provided a substantial
basis for the magistrate's finding of probable cause. There is a
preference for searches with warrants, and a reviewing court
should not adopt a grudging, hyper technical view of warrant

applications, but review them in a common sense, realistic
manner.

In 1983 the United States Supreme Court decided Illinois v. Gates, 462 U.S. 213, 103
S.Ct. 2317 (1983), which revolutionized the standards by which issued and executed search
warrants were to be judged by reviewing courts. In Gates, the Supreme Court did away with
the so called “two-prong” test which previously existed under Aguilar v. Texas, 378 U.S. 108,
84 S.CL 1509 (1964), and Spinelli v. United States, 393 U.S. 410, 89 S.C1. 584 (1969). Instead,

the Gates decision sct forth a new standard for probable cause which would support a Search
Warrant. The new rule established a “totality of the circumstances” approach.

“The task of the issuing magistrate is simply to make a practical, common-sense
decision whether, given all the circumstances set forth in the affidavit set before him, there is
a fair probability that contraband or evidence of a crime will be found in a particular place.”
Gates, 462 U.S. at 213-14, 103 S.Ct. at 2319.

On November [, 2013, the Defendant was arrested and taken into custody at his place
of cmployment after J.T. was discovered by Officer Abbott at Defendant’s residence.

On December 5, 2013, CCSDPD Detective, Jefl Schell, was contacted by Chief Deputy

District Attorney Jacqueline Bluth, who informed him that J.T.’s mother had contacted her
,—————-—-—____—-—-_—.“"-—_
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and advised that J.T. had recently disclosed that to her that Defendantﬁsked her to send him

de her how to pose in the photos. DDA Bluth spoke to J.T. who confirmed

all of the information. J.T. further stated that the photos could be found on Defendant’s

computer. Based upon the fact that J .T. had told CCSDPD that she had met Defendant online

through Craiglist.com which would be accessed via computer or smart phone and the fact that

the victim had recently. disclosed.to_her. mother._the existence of pude_pictures of her on
— e T e ——— g

Defendant’s computer; and, the fact that only she and Defendant were the only two occupants

of the apartment prior to her being recovered and his arrest. a search warrant was applied for
L E T —

—

U TEEE Y (

and obtained for Defendant’s residence 1o recover,
HILALIYE,

1. Any and all computers or devices capable of accessing the
internet or sending and receiving messages or downloading and
storing data.

2, Any articles of personal property which would tend to

establish the identify of persons in control of said premise, which W
items of property would consist in part of and include, but not v
limited to papers, documents and cffects which tend to show
possession, dominion and control over said premises, including
but not limited to keys, canceled mail envelopes, rental
agreements and receipts, utility and telephone bills, prescription
botiles, vehicle registration, vehicle repairs and gas receipts. Items
which tend to show evidence of m of motive and/or the identity of the
perpetrator such as photographb and undevcloped film, insurance
policies and ictters, address and telephone records, diaries,
governmental notices, whether such items are written, typed or
stored on computer disk. Objects which bear a person’s name,
phone number or address.

3. Any and all female clothing or personal hygiene products.

On_Deccember 6, 2013, the search warrant was served and two computers were
r—‘—_\-\___’________.—— \

recovered from Sprowson’s apartment: 1 HP Pavilion laptop computer with serial number
T g— —

CNF004B4)T and 1 IBM 58 U computer bearing serial number KCLV8ZD, Also recovered

in the search warrant were articles of personal property which would tend to establish the

/1
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identity of persons in control of said premises along with female clothing and personal hygicne
products.

Based upon the above infonmation probable cause existed that there would be emails
and other electronic evidence showing conversations between Melvyn Sprowson Jr., and J.T.
illustrating planning and/or enticing of Torres to leave her home. Furthermore, probable cause
existed that there would be images of 16 year old J.T. in various stages of undress to include
nude images on Melvyn Sprowson Jr.’s computer.

‘Notwithstanding Defendant’s claim that Officer Abboit’s conduct was illegal when he
discovered 1.T. in the Defendant’s apartment during the knock and talk in November 2013,

the facts in this case very clearly indicate that the search of Defendant’s apartment one month

{ater, on December 6, 2013, was based on an entirely new set of {acts provided by the victim

in this case which indicated that Defendant had photographs of her in various stages of undress,

on his computer. At that time law enforcement prepared a sufficiently legal and valid search

warrant based upon the new information; and in fact, were granted the authority to seize the

requested items by the court. 4, Sy e el { e 3
r CONCLUSION f': R |
Based upon the above and foregoing Peints and Authorities, Defendant’s Motion 10

Suppress Evidence must be denied. A
DATED this _17% day of June, 2015. . T

Respectfully submi{t:.d:

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY

UTTINE BLUTH
Deputy District Attorney
vada Bar #010625

i
i
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the Gates decision set forth a new standard for probable cause which wouldjsupport a Search

Warrant. The new rule established a “totality of the circumstances” approach.
“The task of the issuing magistrate is simply to make a practical, common-sense
decision whether, given all the circumstances set forth in the affidavit set before him, there is
a fair probability that contraband or evidence of a crime will be found in a particular place.”
Gates, 462 U.S. at 213-14, 103 S.Ct. at 2319.
On November 1, 2013, the Defendant was arrested and taken into custody at his place
of employment after J.T. was discovered by Officer Abbott at Defendant’s residence.

On December 5, 2013, CCSDPD Detective, Jeff Schell, was contacted by Chief Depu

District Attorney Jacqueline Bluth, who informed him that J.T.’s mother had contacted her

and advised that J.T. had recently disclosed to her that Defendant asked herjto send him nude

At

photos and told her how to pose in the photos. DDA Bluth spoke to J.T. who confirmed all of

the information. J.T. further stated that the photos could be found on Defendant’s computer.
Based upon the fact that J.T. had told CCSDPD that she had met Defenda‘nt online through

Craiglist.com which would be accessed via computer or smart phone and the fact that the

victim had recently disclosed to her mother the existence of nude pi!ctures of her on

w; and, the fact that only she and Defendant were the o [ly two occupants

of the apartment prior to her being recovered and his arrest, a search warrant was applied for

and obtained for Defendant’s residence to recover;
e e e e e e —————

1. Any and al] computers or devices capable of accessmg the
internet or sending and receiving messages or downloading and
storing data.

2. Any articles of personal property which would tend to
establish the identify of persons in control of said premise, which
items of property would consist in part of and include, bul! not
limited to papers, documents and effects which tend to show
possession, dominion and control over said premises, mcludmg
but not limited to keys, canceled mail envelopes, rental
agreements and receipts, utility and telephone bills, prescrlptlon
bottles, vehicle registration, vehicle repairs and gas receipts. Items
which tend to show evidence of motive and/or the identity of the

w2013\ 78% 1\13F 1784 1-OPPS-(Sprowson_Melvyn)-002.docx
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perpetrator such as photographs and undeveloped film, insurance
policies and letters, address and telephone records, diaries,
governmental notices, whether such items are written, typed or
stored on computer disk. Objects which bear a person’s name,
phone number or address.

—

3. Any and all female clothing or personal hygiene products.

On December 6, ZOM warrant was served and two computers were

_ricove;ai from Sprowson’s apartment; 1 HP Pavilion laptop computer MMIM

CNF004B4JT and 1 IBM 58 U computer bearing serial number KCLV8ZD. Also recovered

—
in the search warrant were articles of personal property which would tend to establish the

O =) O R W N

—
<

identity of persons in control of said premises along with female clothing and|personal hygiene

s
—

products.

fa—
ko

Based upon the above information probable cause existed that there would be emails

f—
(WS}

and other electronic evidence showing conversations between Melvyn Sprowson Jr., and J.T.

[a—
.

illustrating planning and/or enticing of Torres to leave her home. Furthermore, probable cause

-
n

existed that there would be images of 16 year old J.T. in various stages of undress to include

—
(=,

nude images on Melvyn Sprowson Jr.’s computer.

[—
~1

Notwithstanding Defendant’s claim that Officer Abbott’s conduct was illegal when he

[—
o0

discovered J.T. in the Defendant’s apartment during the knock and talk in' November 2013,

p—
o

the facts in this case very clearly indicate that the search of Defendant’s apartment one month

]
o

later, on December 6, 2013, was based on an entirely new set of facts provided by the victim

[ %]
(S

in this case which indicated that Defendant had photographs of her in various stages of undress,

b
(3]

on his computer, At that time law enforcement prepared a sufficiently legal and valid search

[
(W]

warrant based upon the new information; and in fact, were granted the authority to seize the

N
&

requested items by the court.
"
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DR #1311-05723

31

A.  And stuff like that.

Q. Oh. Okay. And so tell me how he takes care of you.

A.  Like -- like -- | don't know. Like just everything. Like if | need
something. |

Q. Uhhuh

A.  Andhe's got - he - he'll get it and all that kind of stuff. But he
cared. Like he wasn't like one ot those people that just like they ‘have an
ultimatum or whatever.

Q.  Uh-huh.

A.  To like go pimp me out or sémething. Like he was just like a
really good guy. And it's just -- (incomprehensible) so upset | had to get
him involved in something like this.

Q. Okay. So you -- you've been at Melvyn's house now since you

said August -
A.  August28™.
Q. --28". And you started talking to him online --
A In July. |

Q.  inJuly. Okay. And so when you were talking to him in July
online, did you guys ever talk about anything else besides the
emancipation?

A.  No. Well, yeah. Butwe -- it was more about like getting
emancipated. It wasn't -- we never had like a pre-thing like, oh, you can

run away this day. No. It was more | just kind of made him take me. Like

~ 1 was kind of like -- didn't like to think about it. | was just like, yeah, | want

to leave now.

Q.  Okay.

i WRITE transcription, inc.  (702) 245-4822 824
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DR #1311-05723
A.  OrI'm going to like kill myself kind of thing.
Q.  Okay.
A.  And he just was like, you know | just want the best for yourself.
Q.  And so tell me more about how you made him take you.
A. | was just kind of like please, please, please, please, please.

And like, you know, all kinds of stuff. Just -- you know.

Q. Okay.
A | need to get out of here.
Q. Okay.

A.  And stuff like that.

Q. Okay. And so prior to you having him -- how did he -- how did
you get to Melvyn's house?

A He picked me up.

Q. Okay. So prior to him picking you up, did you ever -- had you
ever seen Melvyn before?

A.  ldon't remember.

Q.  Okay. So other than like you said you chat -- you would talk to
him online.

A.  Yeah. We video-chatted, you know, talk. We were really good
friends. Yeah.

Q. Okay. So when you guys were video-chatting, did he
ever -- did -- did you guys ever do anything else besides like video chat?

A No.

Q Okay.

A.  Like nothing. We never really did anything sexual or anything.

Q Okay.

A

i WRITE transcription, inc.  (702) 245-4822 825 3
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S EXhibit T7
AFFIDAVIT OF DEFENDANT

STATE OF NEVADA

COUNTY.CF CLARK | SS.

FELVYN P _PROWSON, IR, g duly

_SWocn. deposes and_Says:

That ALLiant Kolds oo Assciate of Applied Science.| |

LI,

Degree 1n_Electanic Engneerwg Teahnelogy. T [:,Q—_%

A(_Q&“{Q.V{J( on _S_QE_)__{Q__mdbﬁr 09, Q_OLSI,_CQ_{J vecewe

Lrom Hne “Slate?” Edniboiks 07, condaining: ()afbdad,

@) Seavch wavrant, and@ Search and Sezure returp pages, |

and_Exhibt “[gi_&égaiou'mmg_ﬁL@_aP_Q&Pa_vii(f)_Sedwﬁ Loav raif;

oind () Search ond Sesure redurn /mggj/_{{z_aw_@#d&»

4o Defendonts Tht}cﬂ Motron 4o Suppress Fudence That

ALL ant declaves dothe best of s Knowledge Lhat

"H/N?f ¢ Qe No D‘Aoivf x_EVer Werﬁa.d/\&d‘ ot Joxy senia Torres |

on_De ! emchuf:% App[@ Lohone 4 Seral &EQ/Z%FTSA_H 7.

el

DATED THIS Tt day of March 2ok, T,

MELVYN P. SPROWSON,IR.do sclemuly swear

UWderc \De_v_\a(:?\[l ok Q@@mr\fl; Haat d+he above

21| Stakem ent 1S _occurate, Cocceck and frue

9y | 4o e best ot o0/ Kn_o_w_&@o&g.a .

2¢ | NRS 71.102 and NRS 262,i(,5.

" g;gé?mu S ]

20 GS (@7 \fl ¢ M(\_ )
27 | L. @5@0@0#0’1

2% MELVY KD, SPROWSOA, IR,
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IN THE SUPREME: COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

MELVYN SPROWSON, ) No. 73674
| )
).
vi. )
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Responaent, J
APPELLANT'S APPENDIX VOLUME'IV PAGESG)% g %/
PHILIP J. KOHN STEVE WOLFSON -
Clark County Public Defender Clark County District J\ttomey
309 South Third Street 200 Lewis Avenue, 3™ Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2610 Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
Attorney for Appellant ADAM LAXALT

Attorney. General

100 North Carson Street

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717
(702) 687- 3338

| Counsel for Respondent
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby Géitily that this document was filed electronically with the Nevada

Supreme Court on the 2 day of May, 2018. Electronic Service of the foregoing document
shall be made in accordance with the Master Service List as follows:
ADAM LAXALT DEBORAH L. WESTBROOK:

STEVEN S. OWENS HOWARD S, BROOKS |
I further certify that I served a copy of this document by mailing a true and

correct copy thereof, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

MELVYN SPROWSON, #1184740

HIGH DESERT STATE PRISON

P.0O. BOX 650 -

INDIAN SPRINGS, NV 89070

a BY /5! Carrie M. Connolly
Employee, Clark County Public Defender’s Office
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